MODELLING REGIONAL DIFFERENTIAL OF EARLY CHILDBEARING AMONG WOMEN OF CHILD BEARING AGE IN



### MODELLING REGIONAL DIFFERENTIAL OF EARLY

### CHILDBEARING AMONG WOMEN OF CHILD BEARING AGE IN

NIGERIA.

BY

**DOLAPO LATEEFAT OGUNDARE** 

**B.SC MATHEMATICS(IBADAN)** 

### MATRIC NO: 133625

A Project in the Department of Epidemiology and Medical Statistics in partial

fulfilment of the requirement of degree of

MASTERS OF SCIENCE IN MEDICAL STATISTICS

OF

THE UNIVERSITY OF IBADAN

### MARCH, 2014

#### CERTIFICATION

This is to certify that this project was carried out by Dolapo Lateefat, OGUNDARE in the

Department of Epidemiology and Medical Statistics, Faculty of Public Health, University of

Ibadan.



Dr. S.A Adebowale

(Supervisor)

Durch 15/04/14

Dr J.O Akinyemi

(Co-Supervisor)

#### DEDICATION

This work is dedicated to Almighty Allah and my ever supporting family members



AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

iii

### DEDICATION

This work is dedicated to Almighty Allah and my ever supporting family members



AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

iii

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I will be grateful to God for making this project a success even when I had thought that doing this project may be impossible.

I also want to appreciate the Support of my Supervisor, Dr Adebowale for assisting in the realization of this project work. My sincere appreciation to all my lecturers in the Department. Dr Akinyemi for his assistance during the period of absence of my supervisor. I also express my gratitude to other lecturers in the department for their moral supports in the course of the project write-up.

I thank all colleagues in M.Sc Medical Statistics class for making the atmosphere conducive for me during the period of this programme.

It gives me a great pleasure to express my sincere appreciation to my immediate and extended family members for their prayers and encouragement in the course of gathering information towards the accomplishment of the goal.

Finally, I thank my lovely and caring husband Engr. Abdul lateef Abiola Oguntola for his guidance and technical assistance during the project write-up. I will forever be faithful and grateful to you.

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

iv

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I will be grateful to God for making this project a success even when I had thought that doing this project may be impossible.

I also want to appreciate the Support of my Supervisor. Dr Adebowale for assisting in the realization of this project work. My sincere appreciation to all my lecturers in the Department, Dr Akinyemi for his assistance during the period of absence of my supervisor. I also express my gratitude to other lecturers in the department for their moral supports in the course of the project write-up.

I thank all colleagues in M.Sc Medical Statistics class for making the atmosphere conducive for meduring the period of this programme.

It gives me a great pleasure to express my sincere appreciation to my immediate and extended family members for their prayers and encouragement in the course of gathering information towards the accomplishment of the goal.

Finally, I thank my lovely and caring husband Engr. Abdul lateef Abiola Oguntola for his guidance and technical assistance during the project write-up. I will forever be faithful and grateful to you.

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

iv

#### ABSTRACT

BACKGROUND: Early child bearing(EC) remains a public health problem in developing countries particularly Sub-Saharan Africa. The Socio economic and health implication of this demographic hazard is enormous. In Nigeria, early child bearing is one of the cultural practices in some parts of the country most especially where women are poorly educated. Studies that explore regional differences in EC are relatively scarce in Nigeria. Therefore, this study explores modelling regional differential of EC among women of child bearing age in Nigeria.

METHOD: The study is based on the analysis of National Demographic and health Survey (NDHS), 2008 data set. The Data were analysed using the frequency Distribution, Chi-square and Cox-proportional hazard model. Early child bearing in the context of this study was defined as women who had their first birth at ages less than 18 years.

**RESULT**: There were variation in patterns of early child bearing across age, education, religion, wealth Index, Place of residence. The respondents in the Northern region showed a higher proportion of earlier ages at First birth. North Central (58.4%), North East (69.6%), North west(70.5%) as compared to respondents from the Southern parts. South east(35.6%), South South (36.3%) and South west (42.0%). When early childbearing was cross tabulated with the socio-demographic characteristics, It was also observed that the pattern of early childbearing too varied across the regions in Nigeria. Respondents with no education from the Northern parts showed a higher proportion of early childbearing. North Central (41.5%), North East (57.7%), North west (54.0%) as compared to southern parts. South east (35.9%), South South (39.0%), South west (28.2%). In the Cox proportional Hazard model of early childbearing in the whole country, the hazards of having early childbearing was 3%, (95% C.I=0.25-0.36) of those with higher education and 92% of those with primary education (95% C.I=0.87-0.98) as compared to those with no level of education.

CONCLUSION: Early child bearing is still a common practice in Nigeria and It is more common among women residence in the regions in the North than south. Health education targeting early child bearing (EC) should be improved in Nigeria and should focus more in the Northern region.

V

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**



List of Tables

List of Figures

#### **CHAPTER ONE:** INTRODUCTION

- Background 1.1
- 1.2 Statement of Problem
- 1.3 **Research Justification**
- Objectives of the Study 1.4
- **Research Questions** 1.5

CHAPTER TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW

Introduction 2.1

6 6

7

7

8

4

5

X

#### Trends of Early child bearing in Sub-Saharan Africa 2.2

2.2.1 Globally

2.2.2 Sub-Saharan Africa

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

vi

#### 2.2.3 Nigeria

- 2.3 Determinants of Early Child Bearing
  - 2.3.1 Current Age of Respondents
  - 2.3.2 Education
  - 2.3.3 Religion
  - 2.3.4 Wealth Index
  - 2.3.5 Place of Residence
  - 2.3.6 Contraceptive Use
  - 2.3.7 Age at First Sexual Intercourse



8

9

9

9

16

	2.3.8	Marital status at first Birth	12
	2.3.9	Ethnicity	12
	2.3.10	Region	13
	2.3.11	Life Time Number of Sexual partners	13
2	.4 De	emographic Consequences of Early Child Bearing	13
	2.4.1	Early Child Bearing and Infant and Child Mortality	13
	2.4.2	Early Child Bearing and Maternal Health Risk	14
	2.4.3	Early Child Bearing and Fertility Patterns	14
	2.4.4	Early Child Bearing and Children ever born	15
	2,5 E	conomic Consequences of Early Child Bearing	15
	2.5.1	School Drop Outs	15

#### 2.5.2 Unstable and less Remunerative Employment

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

vii

#### CHAPTER THREE: METHODOLOGY

- 3.1Brief Description of the Study173.2Data Collection Procedures173.3Sample Design183.4Operationalization of Key Variables19
  - 3.4.1 Dependent Variables
  - 3.4.2 Independent Variables
- 3.5 Method of Analysis



CHAPTER FOUR: ANALYSIS AND RESULTS

Analysis and Results

**CHAPTER FIVE:** 

Discussion

Conclusion and Recommendation

REFERENCES

22

vili

### LIST OF TABLES

- 4.1 Percentage Distribution of the women with First Birth according to region by Socio-demographic factors
- 4.2 Percentage Distribution of Early Childbearing (having Children at age less than
  18 years) by region according to socio-demographic characteristics
- 4.3 Percentage Distribution of Age at First Birth according to Socio Demographic Characteristics
- 4.4 Cox Proportional Hazard Model of Early Childbearing in the North Central

#### region

- 4.5 Cox Poportional Hazard Model of Early childbearing in the North East region 36
- 4.6 Cox Proportional Hazard Model of Early childbearing in the North West region 38
- 4.7 Cox Proportional Hazard Model of Early childbearing in the South East region 42
- 4.8 Cox Proportional Hazard Model of Early childbearing in the South South region 40
- 4.9 Cox Proportional Hazard Model of Early childbearing in the South West region 41

4.10 Cox Proportional Hazard Model of Early childbearing in Nigeria

24

27

30

34

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

IX

#### LIST OF FIGURES

4.1:	Hazard Function Showing Region	46
4.2:	Hazard Function Showing Age of Respondents	47
4.3:	Hazard Function showing Age at First Sexual Intercourse	48
4.4:	Hazard Function showing Education	49
4.5:	Hazard Function showing Religion	50
4.6:	Hazard Function showing Life Time Number of Sexual Partners	51



AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

X

# CHAPTER ONE INTRODUCTION

#### 1.1 BACKGROUND

Waiting until a woman is at least 18years old before trying to have children improves maternal and child health (Brown H.L et al, 1991). The world Health Organization estimates that each year, 358,000 women die due to complications related to pregnancy and childbirth: 99% of these deaths occur within the most disadvantaged population groups living in the poorest countries of the world (World Health Organization, 2011)

Adolescents girls who give birth each year have a much higher risk of dying from maternal

causes compared to women in their 20's and 30's. These risks increase greatly as maternal age decreases, with adolescents under 16 facing four times the risk of maternal death as women over 20 (WHO, 2011). Too early childbearing also negatively impacts the survival of newborns. Studies have shown rates of newborn death to average about 50% higher to adolescent mothers versus mothers above 18 (Macro International, 2008).

Adolescent Pregnancy is a major contributor to maternal and child mortality, and to the Vicious cycle of ill-health and poverty. The Global strategy for women and children's health launched by the United Nations Secretary-General in 2010 stresses the importance of addressing the health and welfare of adolescent girls in order to achieve the fifth millennium Development Goal on maternal mortality reduction.

In May 2011, the World Health Assembly adopted a resolution urging member states to accelerate actions to improve health of young people. It included these specific measures

-reviewing and revising policies to protect young people from early child-beraing

-Providing access to Contraception and reproductive health care services, and

-Promoting access to accurate information on sexual and reproductive health.

Early childbearing is defined as having the first birth at ages below 18 years is still a common demographic phenomenon in sub-Saharan Africa. The implication of early child

bearing is enormous and may have strong influence on the achievement of millennium development goals. Most of the themes of the MDG's are yet to be accomplished despite the

fact that a year is left to the target. Non-realization of these goals is traceable to childbearing dynamics of a country particularly the rate and timing of childbearing among women.

Age at First birth is of particular interest to both researchers and the public. The average age of women when they have a child, especially their first birth influences the total number of births that a woman is likely to have in her life which impacts the size, composition and future growth of the population (Mathews et al, 2009). The age of mother at the time of her first birth, both younger and older, plays a strong role in a range of birth outcomes (e.g birthweight, multiple births, and birth defects) which makes it a necessity to know the average age at which women have their first birth. Also, early life events such as early childbearing have a strong tendency to influence later aspects of life. The timing of first birth is known to affect both demographic and non-demographic phenomena in the life course of a woman (Mirowsky & Ross, 2002). For Instance, the timing of first birth has strong effects on both individual and aggregate levels of fertility, as well as broader implications for women's role and social change. In the absence of any effective birth control, or situations where It is only used for spacing, but not for preventing childbearing, the total number of children a woman bears is principally dependent on the age at which child bearing begins (Gyimah, 2003).

This is however not always the case in developed countries, where the pervasiveness of reduced child bearing and increased use of modern contraceptives mean that young women who gave birth early in life may delay childbearing at later parts of her childbearing years(Grindstaff, Balakrishnan and Dewit, 1991). Early childbearing can interrupt a young woman's education and also limit her opportunity in modern economy. Women who begin childbearing early in life spend less time preparing for their careers limiting them to low social economic status. Early child bearing also endangers the health of the mother and her

# offspring and contributes to high childhood and maternal mortality (Zabın and Kiragu, 1998)

It also exposes young women to a high risk of HIV infection, due to lack of bargaining power with their partners in regard to the use of condoms(Zabin and Kiragu, 1998)

2

In the united states in 2005, one in every twelve women have their first birth at ages 35 or older, while in 1970, It was just one in one hundred (Ready, 2007). This is a trend that is becoming popular among all round the globe towards having their first birth later than their mothers had theirs. However, evidence suggests that early childbearing is commonly practiced in developing countries than developed countries. In sub-Saharan Africa, the mean age at first birth in most countries in this region is below 19 years. Nigeria, the most populous country in the region is among the countries with the least age at first birth. Although, there have been tremendous improvement in age at first birth in Nigeria, the pace of increase is relatively low compared to other countries. The 1990 Nigeria Demographic and Health Survey (NDHS) showed that one half of all women in Nigeria become mothers before age 20: 10-12% gives birth before age 15 years and 21-28% gives birth between 15-17 years (FOS, 1992). Also the 1999 NDHS results, revealed that mean age at first birth was less than 19 years (NDHS, 1999) and the 2003 survey showed a slight increasing trend.

The decline in childbearing in most societies often proceeds in two stages. The first stage is the decline in childbearing due to an increase of age at first birth. (Gupta and Mahy. 2003). This stage is more applicable in developing countries where timing of first birth is known to affect completed fertility. However, this first stage of transition has received little or no attention.

Researchers have shown much interest in proximate determinants of fertility in sub-saharan Africa (Makinde – Adebusoye and Ebigbola, 1992, Foot, Hill & Martin 1993, Cleland, Onuoha and Timaeus, 1994, Makinde Adebusoye 2001, Cald and Caldwell 2002, Norville, Gomez and Brown, 2003, Baschieri and Hinde 2007, Kazembe, 2009). The majority of the researchers concentrate on other determinants of fertility but Ignore the timing of First Birth. Their argument is that childbearing only occurs within marriage. This might be true only for population where majority of brides are virgin.

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

3

#### **1.2 STATEMENT OF THE PROBLEM**

High population growth and total fertility rate in Nigeria has been a source of concern to government and international Agencies. As a result, the Federal Republic of Nigeria instituted a policy in 1988 to check the pace of growth, this policy was reviewed in 2004 (Nigeria Population Policy, 2004). Despite increasing efforts of the government of Federal Republic of Nigeria, Population growth rate is yet to be curtailed to bearable minimum and health problems associated with childbearing remain a challenge. Under five and maternal mortality rates are high. For instance, the 2008 demographic health Survey conducted in Nigeria put the Infant and Under five mortality figures at 75 and 157 deaths per 1000 live births respectively. (NDHS, 2008. Also, the maternal mortality rate in Nigeria (545 deaths per 1000 live births) (NDHS, 2008) ranks among the highest globally (WHO, 2007). Early childbearing is known to be important determinant of these menaces(Kongnyuy et al, 2008, Kramer and Lancaster, 2010).

Higher proportion of women of child bearing age in Nigeria are illiterates and are lagging behind their contemporaries in advanced countries like USA, Europe and so on(Kitetu C, 2001).

Early childbearing has been proved to hamper female's education and their socio-economic status (Obare, Agwanda and Magadi, 2006). Education has numerous influences on life course processes including age at first birth (Gupta and Mahy, 2003). The level of literacy in Nigeria calls for concern on its possible implication on demographic indices particularly fertility level which is widely known to be influenced by the women's age at first birth (NDHS, 2008).

Modern Contraceptives have been identified as good means of protecting individual against pregnancies particularly when not wanted (Mischell, 2007: NPC, 2009). Researchers found its usefulness in improvement of women's health and can cause a shift in the pattern of childbearing in any nation (Isiugo-Abanihe 1996, Bloom and Canning 2003). However in Nigeria, the prevalence of modern contraceptive use is low (8%) and its unmet need is high(23%) (NDHS, 2008). The age at first birth is known to be higher in countries where the use of modern contraceptive particularly among women of childbearing age is on the increase. (World population data sheet, 2009)

4

#### **1.3 RESEARCH JUSTIFICATION**

Going by the importance of childbearing on women and the nation, a study that models the age patterns of ages at which childbearing occurs in Nigeria is necessary. It is quite agreed that age at first birth is low in Nigeria, but variation exist across different segment of the population. Therefore, modelling the patterns of child bearing will reveal the subgroup of the Nigeria population that needed more attention of family planning and other health programmes that could facilitate a positive change in age at first birth in Nigeria.

Also, despite the relevance of age at first birth as it relates directly to fertility and mortality, few studies have focused on the regional differences in age at first birth in Nigeria. (Gupta and Mahy 2003, Oyefara, 2012, Mathews et al 2009)

Despite the acceptability and media information on family planning programmes in Nigeria data are evidenced that the total fertility rate (5.7) remains unchanged between 2003 and 2008 (NDHS, 2008; NDHS, 2003)Age at first birth has been identified in the past as one of the reasons for such stagnancy in total fertility in the country.

The regional difference in age at first birth is still a grey area for research in Nigeria. Most researchers have assumed that child bearing only occurs within marriage, hence majority of studies are focused on age at first marriage(Yadav et al, 1997;Thomas Ermans, 2011). But this assumption is not always true in modern times where a large number of children are born outside wedlock, hence, a study that will show pattern of age at first birth is important at this time.

## 1.4 OBJECTIVES OF THE STUDY

#### 1.4.1 Main Objectives

The main objective of this study is to describe the pattern of age at first birth among women of child bearing ages in the six regions in Nigeria.

1.4.2 Specific Objectives

The Specific objectives of the study are to:

(1) Describe the socio-demographic characteristics of women according to regions in Nigeria.

(2) Examine the association between age at First birth and region in Nigeria

(3) Identify what factors contribute to regional differential in early childbearing in Nigeria.

(4) Explore the interactive effect of socio-demographic factors on early childbearing in Nigeria.

### 1.5 RESEARCH QUESTIONS

The objectives of the study will be achieved using the research questions below;

- Is there association between age at First birth and region?
- Does pattern of early childbearing vary across the regions in Nigeria?
- What are the factors responsible for regional differential in early childbearing in Nigeria?

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

6

#### **CHAPTER TWO**

#### LITERATURE REVIEW

#### 2.1 INTRODUCTION

Early life events have a strong tendency to influence later ones. Globally, the timing of first birth is known to impact both demographic and non-demographic on the life course of women. (Taniguchi, 1999, Mirowsky and Ross 2002). In sub-Sahara Africa, early child bearing has strong effects on both individual and aggregate levels of fertility as well as broader implications for women's roles and social changes in general(Mirowsky and Ross, 2002). In the absence of any effective contraceptive, or where contraception is only being used for spacing, but not for limiting fertility, the total number of children a woman bears is principally a function of the age at which childbearing begins. (Gyimah, 2003). This is however not always the case in developed countries, where pervasiveness of low fertility norms and increasing use of modern contraceptives mean that young women who gave birth early in life avoid child bearing later.(Grindstaff, Balakrishran, and Devit, 1991). Age at first birth is an important issue of discourse in population dynamics that has attracted a lot of attention in literature.(Oyefara, 2013)

### 2.2 TRENDS OF EARLY CHILD BEARING

#### 2.2.1 Globally

Substantial declines in early childbearing have occurred in North Africa and Asia, but levels are still high in some countries. In latin America, where the level of teenage childbearing is moderate, declines are less prevalent and some increases have occurred. (Singh, S 1998). In the United states, the average age of first time mothers increased 3.6 years from 1970 to 2006, from 21.4 to 25.0 years. Increases in average age at first birth were more pronounced in the 1970's and 1980's. The average age at first birth increased in all states and Districts of Columbia (5.5 years) and Massachusetts (5.2 years) had the largest increases since 1970. In 2006, Asian or pacific Islander women had the oldest average age at first birth (28.5) years and American Indian or Alaska Native women had the youngest (21.9) years. (Hamilton et

al,2009). In many developing nations, the age at first birth has been increasing.

#### 2.2.2 Sub-Saharan Africa

Sub-Saharan Africa has some of the highest levels of adolescent child bearing in the world. Since the 1980's, several countries in the sub-Saharan country have begun a transition toward lower fertility and this has been accompanied by an upward trend in the age at first birth, however wide variations still exist across countries. Early childbearing is most common in sub-Saharan Africa, which is put at 26 percent of women ages 15 to 19. (Zlider et al, 2003). In the central Africa republic, Chad, Guinea, Madagascar, Mali, and Nigeria, over one third of adolescent women have had their first birth. Most Data in existing literatures point to the fact that there is high prevalence of early childbearing among adolescents than in any of the other regions of the world. According to (Singh S, 1998) in his study , the analysis revealed that some sub-Saharan countries are experiencing a reduction in the rate of adolescent childbearing, but the proportion of adolescent births will continue to increase unless unmarried couples adopt contraception.

#### 2.2.3 Nigeria

The age at first in Nigeria according 2008 NDHS is 19.4 which still remain relatively low among other countries of the world. Between 1980 and 2003, the birth rate among women aged 15-19 decreased by 27% (from 173 births to 126 births per 1000 women). Nonetheless, 46% of women nationally and about 70% of those in some regions still gave birth before their 20<sup>th</sup> birthday (NPC, 2004). Nigerian women who start having children while they are still adolescents face severe social and health disadvantages, including curtailed educational opportunities, which reduce women's social and economic status long term, elevated rates of peri –natal death. With a population of close to 124 million in 2003, Nigeria is one of the most populous country in Africa. The country's population more than tripled between 1960 and 2000, and is expected to double again by the year 2025 (World population prospects, 2002). In a report by the Guttmatcher Institute (2004), It reported that among women aged 20-24, the proportion marrying during their teens is high among those with fewer than seven years of Schooling (84%) and those in the North East and North West Regions (80-89%). intermediate among women in urban areas (40%), and low among those in the Southern regions (20-28%) and those with more education (26%) As fewer young women are marrying in their teens, adolescent child bearing is deceasing in many parts of Nigeria. Nationally, 59% of the women aged 40-44 gave birth to their first child before their 20<sup>th</sup> birthday compared with 46% of those aged 20-24. The generational change was obvious in the two Southern regions, with dramatic falls in the South –East region (from 69%-27%). However, in the

8

North East region, there has been no reduction in the high proportion of women having a child before 20. According to the report, Education is a key factor behind the decline in adolescent childbearing observed at national level. Child bearing before age 20 has also increased among less educated women, in both urban and rural areas. Better educated women aged 20-24 are about half as likely as their equally educated older counterparts to have had a child in their adolescent years (Guttmacher Institute, 2004).

But despite the decline in early childbearing in many parts of Nigeria, very early Motherhood has by no means disappeared totally.

#### 2.3 DETERMINANTS OF EARLY CHILD BEARING

In the literature, many factors have been found as the determinants of early childbearing. Some of these factors are described below;

#### 2.3.1 Current age of Respondents

Demographic studies in the traditional societies especially where there is little or no use contraception show a positive relationship between age and fertility level of women.

#### 2.3.2. Education

In most countries, education has been demonstrated to have a significant effect on pattern of chid bearing. Education gives new outlook about life in addition to important skills that enable them take up new opportunities particularly for women. The attainment of higher level of education is regarded as one of the factors that is fast eroding traditional values like large families and replacing them with smaller families marked by material aspiration (Singh S, 1998). A strong correlation between women's education and age at first birth consistently emerges from studies throughout the world (Ainsworth 1994, Martin Juarez 1995). Akpa and Ikpotiyin (2012) in their study found out that women with no education and those with secondary education had 1.36 times the risk and a 17% increase in fertility (respectively) over those with higher education. A study in Nigeria showed that showed that the mean numbers

of children ever born of older mothers with secondary and higher levels of education were significantly lower than their counterparts who are adolescent mothers with the same levels of education (Oyefara, 2013). He also noted that older women with primary school level of education and those of without any formal education had higher fertility rates than their counterparts who were adolescents at the time they had their first childbirths. In the analysis

9

of Demographic and health survey data from eight countries of sub-Saharan Africa, Mahy and Gupta (2001) found that girls who had attained at least secondary level of education were less likely to have a child before the age of 18.. In their study of Mexican women, Lindstrom and Bambila (2001) found that an increase in the number of years in School reduces the likelihood of early childbearing. Choe et al (2005) estimate a proportional hazards model in order to examine the covariates of early motherhood in Nepal and found that education plays an important role. Although, Cochraine (1979) argued that identifying the direction of any causal relationship between early child bearing and education is complex. As shown in most studies on inter-relationship between age at first birth and education, there is always an inverse relationship between educational level and age at first birth. As pointed out by Schultz (2002), In developing countries, fewer number of children which is facilitated by delayed childbearing allows women to devote more time to self employment activities, thereby contributing to family Income.

#### 2.3.3. Religion

Religion, according to max weber is the opium of the masses. Religion is believed to play a part in shaping the views, norms, belief, attitudes and practices of the people which in turn affects the reproductive behaviour. In Nigeria, religion affects have a great effect on the pattern of childbearing. Studies done in India indicate that Hindus marry and bear children at younger ages than non-hindus (Blom and Reddy, 1986). In Tanzania, religion influences childbearing ages. Religions such as Islam that places absolute emphasis on pre-marital chastity, this will ultimately result in early marriage and as a result early pre-disposition to sexual intercourse, thereby leading to early childbearing ages, (Ngaalinda). In his study, Muslims showed a lower mean age of child bearing of 18years than other religious affiliate.

#### 2.3.4. Wealth Index

The economic state of a woman as measured by wealth index has impact on her reproductive status. Researchers have shown that women from higher wealth quintile are more likely to be better educated than those from lower wealth quintile. Also, wealth quintile has been found to

be positively associated with contraceptive use and age at first sexual intercourse. Consequently, It is tempting to argue that wealth quintile have influence on age at first birth or early childbearing.

10

of Demographic and health survey data from eight countries of sub-Saharan Africa, Mahy and Gupta (2001) found that girls who had attained at least secondary level of education were less likely to have a child before the age of 18.. In their study of Mexican women, Lindstrom and Bambila (2001) found that an increase in the number of years in School reduces the likelihood of early childbearing. Choe et al (2005) estimate a proportional hazards model in order to examine the covariates of early motherhood in Nepal and found that education plays an important role. Although, Cochraine (1979) argued that identifying the direction of any causal relationship between early child bearing and education is complex. As shown in most studies on inter-relationship between age at first birth and education, there is always an inverse relationship between educational level and age at first birth. As pointed out by Schultz (2002), In developing countries, fewer number of children which is facilitated by delayed childbearing allows women to devote more time to self employment activities, thereby contributing to family Income.

#### 2.3.3. Religion

Religion, according to max weber is the opium of the masses. Religion is believed to play a part in shaping the views, norms, belief, attitudes and practices of the people which in turn affects the reproductive behaviour. In Nigeria, religion affects have a great effect on the pattern of childbearing. Studies done in India indicate that Hindus marry and bear children at younger ages than non-hindus (Blom and Reddy, 1986). In Tanzania, religion influences childbearing ages. Religions such as Islam that places absolute emphasis on pre-marital chastity, this will ultimately result in early marriage and as a result early pre-disposition to sexual intercourse, thereby leading to early childbearing ages, (Ngaalinda). In his study, Muslims showed a lower mean age of child bearing of 18years than other religious affiliate.

#### 2.3.4. Wealth Index

The economic state of a woman as measured by wealth index has impact on her reproductive status. Researchers have shown that women from higher wealth quintile are more likely to be better educated than those from lower wealth quintile. Also, wealth quintile has been found to be positively associated with contraceptive use and age at first sexual intercourse. Consequently, It is tempting to argue that wealth quintile have influence on age at first birth or early childbearing.

10

#### 2.3.5. Place of Residence

So many studies done in the past have observed that women living in urban areas start bearing child early enough than their counterparts in the rural setting. Adebimpe et al, (2011) in Osun found that the mean age at first birth among rural respondents was  $20.8\pm3.7$  years and  $23.2\pm5.1$  years among urban respondents, also the mean number of births per woman was  $3.4\pm1.8$  births per woman in rural, and  $2.9\pm1.5$  births per urban woman. They concluded that there was a significant association between locations of residence and the mean age at first birth.

Cohen (1993), in his argument argued that women living in urban areas are assumed to have better knowledge of contraception, and also access to it which will one way affect their reproductive outlook. An independent association between place of residence and risk of early childbearing was found significant in Cote d'Ivoire, Ghana, and Senegal. Girls leaving in Urban areas were found to be over 30% less likely to have a first birth before 18 as compared to rural residents in a study by Mahy and Gupta, 2003. In Nsukka, Nigeria, where a study was conducted on married adolescents, the study revealed that 10.5% of the total respondents have given birth in Nsukka Urban town as compared to 25.5% in the rural community. The study indicated that experience of childbirth among married adolescents girls was higher in the rural community than in Nsukka town (Ezeah, 2012).

#### 2.3.6 Contraceptive Use

Contraception has been defined as a means of controlling fertility by using various methods that inhibit contraception which can be traditional or modern method. The 1990 Nigeria Demographic and health Survey showed that Knowlege of family planning method witnessed a remarkable improvement between 1981 and 1990 because about 46% of all women aged 15-49 at the study knew at least one method of family planning, with about 44% Identifying modern methods of which the pill, injection, condom, IUCD and female sterilization were most commonly known. The 2003 NDHS results also confirmed this. In an analysis between age at first birth and Contraceptive use among women of child bearing age in Osun, the study revealed that older mothers had relatively better knowledge about contraceptives than

adolescent. 94.0% of older mothers against 83.2% among adolescent mothers had knowledge about contraceptive use (Oyefara, 2013)

#### 2.3.7 Age at First Sexual Intercourse

The age at first sexual intercourse is the age when sexual initiation begins. It is an important indicator of exposure to risk of pregnancy and early child bearing. In cases where the use of the most effective contraceptive method is absent, usually the age at first sexual intercourse is very close to the age at First Birth (Gobopamang and Halima, 2002). In a study by Uthman (2008), North West and North East had the highest proportion of women who had reported early sexual debut.

#### 2.3.8 Marital Status at First Birth

The timing of first marriage or union is an important dimension of women's reproductive behaviour with far reaching consequences. The age at which women marry continues to vary widely both across and within the country education, and urbanization. (P. Makinwa and Adebusoye, 1995). A women's age at first marriage continues to be a useful indicator of her status and the start of childbearing. Most researchers have assumed that childbearing only occurs within marriage (Yadav, et al 1997; Thomas Ermans, 2011) but this assumption does not hold true in modern societies. The transition of women into motherhood in turkey still takes place relatively early despite the rise in the average age of birth over time. The average age at first birth was 21.2 in 2003, up from 19.3 in 1983. In turkey, an important characteristic of the transition into motherhood of women is that almost all are married at the time of first birth. (Blossfeld and De Rose, 1992)

#### 2.3.9 Ethnicity

Ethnic Identity is the most basic and politically salient form of Identity in Nigeria. In competitive and non-competitive settings, Nigerians are more likely to define themselves in terms of their ethnic affinities than any other identity. The Ethnic group a woman belongs to cannot be dissociated from the fertility pattern a woman is bound to experience. A study by Akpa and Ikpotiyin, 2012 revealed that while Hausas and Igbo women were found to be more likely to have higher fertility than those from the minority groups, there was eighty percent decrease in the level of fertility among the Yoruba women when compared with the minority groups. In the 2008 NDHS, It was reported that lowest fertility rate was reported for the

South west zone which is predominantly inhabited by the Yorubas.

12

#### 2.3.10 Region

The main regions in Nigeria consist of are the North, South, and East. It was later broken down into six geo-graphic zones: North central, North East, North West, South East, South South and South West regions. Patterns of Fertility and child bearing vary across all these regions. The North central region has a Total fertility rate (TFR) that is lower than the core Northern regions, but which is still on the average , one child more than the TFR of the Southern regions (Reed and Mberu). The total fertility in the North has been over two children per woman higher than that of the South in both 2003 and 2008. Also, the mean number of children ever born (a measure of past fertility) was 3.1 in 2003 for Nigeria as a whole but a difference of over one child per woman was observed between the North and the South. In the Study by Reed and Mberu, showed that adolescent motherhood and pregnancy are lowest in the South West and South East regions in 2003. In Contrast, 38% and 37% of adolescents aged 15-19 in the North East and North West were mothers in 2003, the highest level in the country.

#### 2.3.11 Life Time Number of Sexual Partners

Young Ages at first intercourse is associated with subsequently having multiple sexual partners and more frequent intercourse , both of which increase the risk of contracting sexual sexually transmitted disease (STDs) and becoming pregnant which subsequently leads to early child bearing (Moore et al, 1995).

# 2.4 DEMOGRAHIC CONSEQUENCES OF EARLY CHILD BEARING

Differing patterns of child bearing for different countries will definitely come along with its attended consequences. It definitely will shape the demographic profile of any country in terms of its infant and child mortality, changes in fertility patterns, maternal health indices, and the number of children ever born by a woman.

#### 2.4.1 EARLY CHILD BEARING AND INFANT AND CHILD MORTALITY

First Births are associated with very young mothers. The children of these young mothers tend to have higher risk of death because young mothers having their first birth may not have fully reached their physical and reproductive maturity. (Oyefara, 2013) Different studies have reported that children born to mothers who are teenagers experience greater health problems and mortality risks than those of older mothers. It has been reported that early childbearing is

13

associated with worse antenatal health care and vaccination behaviour, lower birth weights and so on (Le Grand and Mback'e (1993), Westoff (1992), Zabin and Kiragu (1998). Women who are younger during their first birth face greater risks of obstetric fistula, preclampsia, haemorrhage, and pelvic bone immaturity which increases the likelihood of cephalopelvic disproportion which later on result in high incidence of premature birth, prolonged labour and sometimes difficult childbirth. (UNICEF 2001)

#### 2.4.2 EARLY CHILD BEARING AND MATERNAL HEALTH RISK

First birth from teen pregnancies and deliveries mostly involve complications which often result in greater risk of maternal mortality and morbidity as compared to pregnancies of women in their twenties(WHO 2000), Ransom and Yinger (2002). Deaths relating to pregnancy are the leading cause of mortality for 15-19year old girls worldwide (WHO 2000). Younger ages at first birth is associated with increased risk of cervical cancer and endometrial cancers but there is an unclear correlation between maternal age at first birth and

site specific malignancies such as ovarian, colorectal, thyroid, pancreatic and kidney cancers. (Fugal et al, 2005). In Zaria, Nigeria, maternal mortality among women younger than sixteen is six times higher than compared to women aged 20-24 with similar findings being reported from Cameroon and Ethiopia (Zabin and Kiragu, 1998). Younger women who have unintended pregnancies may experience serious maternal morbidity and mortality from unsafe abortion (Atuyanmbe et al, 2005, Dahlback et al, 2007)

#### 2.4.3 EARLY CHILDBEARING AND FERTILITY PATTERNS

Fertility patterns vary among adolescents all over the world. The High fertility in traditional African societies, according to Caldwell and Caldwell (1987) is associated with the economic benefits that children provide to their parents. The need for such support (financial) is responsible for the high fertility norm in Africa. Women in Africa begin to have children early enough, thereby bringing an upward shift in fertility pattern as compared to the industrial societies who prefer small family. In a study of Tanzanian women by Ngalinda (1998), It was evident from the study that the mean number of children ever born decreases

with increasing age at first birth since women with younger ages at first birth has a prolonged reproductive life span, hence showing a positive association between age at first birth and fertility. Although, the differences in levels of completed fertility between early and later childbearing is on the increase, women who have their first birth as teenagers tend to have larger families by about one child on the average. (CBASSE, 1987).

14

#### 2.4.4 EARLY CHILD BEARING AND CHILDREN EVER BORN

Children ever born refer to the total number of life births a woman has ever had during the time of the survey .When women Start child bearing late, this shortens the reproductive life cycle thereby decreasing the number of children that would have been born. Several studies have found evidence of faster subsequent childbearing and an increase d chances of unwanted childbirths if the first child is born at an early age (Casterline and trussell, 1980; Finas and Hoem, 1980; balakrishman, 1988). Oyefara (2012) in his work revealed that adolescent mothers had higher parity levels in comparison with older mothers in Osun state.

2.5 ECONOMIC CONSEQUENCES OF EARLY CHILD BEARING No doubt, the consequences of increased or decreased age of child bearing will also be felt in the economic sense.

#### 2.5.1 School Drop-outs

Education is seen as a tool for advancement of the socio-economic status of women in the developing countries. (World Bank, 2006). In a bid for women to achieve this goal, and the natural goal of fertility, there are often clashes between this educational attainment and the attainment of fertility which often result in delayed school outcomes like graduation and performance outcomes. There has been long history of research on childbearing and schooling (Hoffert et al, 2001). Literature review indicates that there is lack of consensus on the way early ages at childbearing affects schooling. Meekers and Ahmed 1999, Madhavan and Thomas 2005 indicate that early childbearing is detrimental to schooling while other studies found that School pregnancy does not inhibit Schooling outcomes and that women giving birth in School have similar chances of graduating from school to those who never did (Upchurch and Mc Carthy, 1990). Evidence suggested a linkage between adolescent child bearing and interruption in School attendance. However, the direction of Causality is Unclear-whether poor performance in School leads to pregnancy and School dropout or whether the occurrence of pregnancy leads to school dropout. (Grant and Hallman, 2008) An analysis of DHS data in 20 sub-Saharan countries indicated that South Africa had the highest number of pregnancy-related dropouts (Lloyd and mensh, 2006) in sub-Saharan Africa. Parents too do not help matters; they force their daughters who get pregnant in school to drop out to avoid embarrassment within the community before the pregnancy becomes an object of ridicule. However, studies by Upchurch and McCarthy, 1990 found that school pregnancy

15

does not affect schooling outcomes and women giving birth in school have similar chances of graduating from school to those who never gave birth.

Furthermore, studies from Kenya suggest that majority of young women pregnant do so after dropping out from school (Mensch et al, 2001), implying that most pregnancies do not affect schooling because these women would still not be in school even if they did not fall pregnant .Without regard to precise causal mechanism, It is likely that adolescent mothers can have impaired long term Social and economic mobility (Jewkes, Morwell and Christofides, 2009)

#### 2.5.2 UNSTABLE AND LESS REMUNERATIVE EMPLOYMENT

In most cases, education is likely to be hampered by pregnancy especially if it occurs at high school. Young girls who experience early child bearing and who have to support their child may enter the job market earlier enough than their counterparts. However, studies carried out

in Barbados, Chile, Guatemala and Mexico in the 1990's reveal that young mothers seem to enter labour force early, work more and earn less than other mothers (Buvinic 1998). Ashcraft and Lang (2006) in their study found out that delay in child bearing ages reduces the probability that girls complete high school and it also adversely affects the number of other adult outcomes.

16

#### **CHAPTER THREE**

#### METHODOLOGY

#### 3.1 Brief Description of the Study Area

Nigeria came into existence as a nation – state in 1914 through the amalgamation of the Northern and Southern protectorates. Prior to that time, there were various separate cultural, ethnic and linguistic groups. The British established a crown colony type of government after the amalgamation. The affairs of the colonial administration were conducted by the British until 1942, when a few Nigerians became involved Nigeria is in the administration of the country. In the early 1950's, Nigeria achieved partial self government with a legislature in which the majority of the members were elected into an executive council of which most were Nigerians. Nigerians became fully independent in October 1960 as a federation of three regions (Northern, Western, and Eastern) under a constitution that provided for a parliamentary system of governance. The Lagos area became the federal capital territory. Nigeria is in the West African sub region, lying between latitudes 4°16' and 13°53' north and longitudes 2°40' and 14°41' east. It is bordered by Niger in the North, Chad in the North east, Cameroon in the East, and Benin in the west. To the south, Nigeria is bordered by approximately 850 kilometres of the Atlantic Ocean, stretching from Badagry in the West to the Rio del Rey in the east, with a total land area of 923,768 square kilometres. Nigeria is the fourteenth largest country in Africa.

Presently, Nigeria is made up of thirty-six states and a federal capital territory (FCT), grouped into six geopolitical Zones namely: North Central, North East, North West, South East, South-South, and South West with about 774 constitutionally recognized local government areas. She has two predominant religions namely, Islam and Christianity.

#### 3.2 Data collection procedures

The 2008 Nigeria Demographic and Health Survey (2008 NDHS) was implemented by the National Population Commission from June to October 2008 on a nationally representative

sample of more than 36,000 households. All women age 15-49 in these households and all men age 15-59 in a sub-sample of half of the households were individually interviewed. The primary objectives of the 2008 NDHS project were to provide up-to-date information on fertility levels; nuptiality; sexual activity; fertility preferences; awareness and use of family planning methods; breastfeeding practices; nutritional status of mothers and young children;

17

early childhood mortality and maternal mortality; maternal and child health; and awareness and behaviour regarding HIV/AIDS and other sexually transmitted infections.

#### 3.3 Sample Design

The survey was cross sectional in design and the sample for the 2008 NDHS was designed to provide population and health indicators at the national, zonal, and state levels. The sample design allowed for specific indicators, such as contraceptive use, to be calculated for each of the 6 zones and 37 states (36 states plus the Federal Capital Territory, Abuja). The sampling frame used for the 2008 NDHS was the 2006 Population and Housing Census of the Federal Republic of Nigeria conducted in 2006, provided by the National

Population Commission (NPC). Administratively, Nigeria is divided into states. Each state is

subdivided into local government areas (LGAs), and each LGA is divided into localities. In addition to these administrative units, during the 2006 Population Census, each locality was subdivided into convenient areas called census enumeration areas (EAs). The primary sampling unit (PSU), referred to as a cluster for the 2008 NDHS, is defined on the basis of EAs from the 2006 EA census frame. The 2008 NDHS sample was selected using a stratified two-stage cluster design consisting of 888 clusters, 286 in the urban and 602 in the rural areas1. A representative sample of 36,800 households was selected for the 2008 NDHS survey, with a minimum target of 950 completed interviews per state. In each state, the number of households was distributed proportionately among its urban and rural areas.

A complete listing of households and a mapping exercise were carried out for each cluster from April to May 2008, with the resulting lists of households serving as the sampling frame for the selection of households in the second stage. All private households were listed. The NPC listing enumerators were trained to use Global Positioning System (GPS) receivers to take the coordinates of the 2008 NDHS sample clusters. In the second stage of selection, an average of 41 households was selected in each cluster, by equal probability systematic sampling. All women age 15-49 who were either permanent residents of the households in the 2008 NDHS sample or visitors present in the households on the night before the survey were eligible to be interviewed. Detailed information about the activities involved during the data collection exercise is available in the report of the data originator (www.measuredhs.com).

18

#### 3.4 Operationalization of key variables

#### 3.4.1 Dependent Variable

Early Child bearing was the dependent variable used in the analysis. Women were asked the question on age at first birth and the response was obtained in quantitative terms. The variable was however recoded to reflect early childbearing.

#### 3.4.2 Independent Variable

#### Demographic variables

The demographic variables were: Age (V012), Age at First Sexual Intercourse (V525), Marital Status at First Birth (V501), Place of Residence (V102).

Age: This was measured by the current age of the respondents as at the time of survey. It is recoded into 15-24, 25-34, and 35-49.

Age at First Sexual Intercourse: This was measured at the ages at which respondents had

their first birth. This is recoded into <15, 15-17, 18 and above.

Marital Status at First Birth: This was obtained by proxy, by computing a new variable which is the difference between age at first birth and age at first marriage. Those with negative ages were those not married at time of first birth, hence coded as not married, while those with positive ages were those married at the time of first hence were recorded as married.

Place of Residence: The residence of the respondents was grouped into rural and urban.

#### Socio-economic variables

The variables were: Education (V106), Religion (V130), Wealth Index (V190). *Education:* This was grouped into None, Primary, Secondary and Higher education categories.

*Religion:* The religions of the respondents were recoded into Christian, Muslim, Traditional, and Others.

Wealth Index: The wealth index was grouped into Poorest, Poorer, Middle, Richer and

#### Richest.

#### Behavioural variables

The variables were: Ever use of Contraceptives and Total Life Time Number of Sexual Partners (V836)

19

Ever Use of Contraceptives (V302): This was recorded into Never used and Ever used. Those who used only Folkloric Method, used only Traditional Method, and used Modern Method were recorded into Ever used. Life Time Number of Sexual Partners (V836): This was grouped into only one sexual partner

and 2+

#### Method of Analysis 3.5

The analyses began with the use of percentage frequency distribution of the women included in this study according to demographic and socioeconomic characteristics. At the bivariate analysis stage, Chi-square model was used to examine the association between the age at first birth and socioeconomic and demographic characteristics of the women. In the context of this

study, the age at first birth was categorized as follows: 9-14, 15-17, 18-24, 25+. The categorization was based on the women who had early childbearing (at ages less than 18 years), late youths (18-24 years) and 25+ years.

#### Multiple regression analysis

The dependent variable used was age at first birth which was categorized into two as early childbearing (first birth at ages less than 18 years) and those who had their childbearing at later ages (18 years and above). Thus, the status variable is age at first birth recoded as 1 if the respondents have first birth at ages less than 18 years and 0 if otherwise. The timing variable is age at first birth in quantitative terms. The nature of these variables suggested that a survival analysis approach would be suitable for the multivariate analysis. The basic model used for this study is the proportion hazards model proposed by Cox in 1972. It is also known as the Cox regression model and based on the assumption of proportional hazards. Since it does not assume any particular form of distribution for survival times, it is referred to as a semi-parametric model. Proportional hazard is the ratio of the hazards for two subjects' j and

k at time t is the same for all values of t i.e.

 $h_i(t)/h_i(t) = \psi fort \ge 0$  w is a constant and  $\psi > 0$ .

If  $\psi < 1$ , the hazard of having the first birth at time t is smaller for an individual and greater if  $\psi > 1$ , compared to the reference category where  $\psi = 1$ . Since  $\psi > 0$ , set  $\psi = \beta$ . Therefore,  $\beta = \log \psi$ (log of the hazard ratio). In such situation, any value of  $\beta$  in the range (- $\infty$ ,  $\infty$ ) will make  $\psi$ positive  $h_i(t) = h_i(t) \exp(\beta)$ . Let  $h_i(t)$  be the hazard of the i-th subject at time t and let X be

20

*Ever Use of Contraceptives (V302):* This was recorded into Never used and Ever used. Those who used only Folkloric Method, used only Traditional Method, and used Modern Method were recorded into Ever used.

Life Time Number of Sexual Partners (V836): This was grouped into only one sexual partner and 2+

#### 3.5 Method of Analysis

The analyses began with the use of percentage frequency distribution of the women included in this study according to demographic and socioeconomic characteristics. At the bivariate analysis stage, Chi-square model was used to examine the association between the age at first birth and socioeconomic and demographic characteristics of the women. In the context of this

study, the age at first birth was categorized as follows: 9-14, 15-17, 18-24, 25+. The categorization was based on the women who had early childbearing (at ages less than 18 years), late youths (18-24 years) and 25+ years.

#### Multiple regression analysis

The dependent variable used was age at first birth which was categorized into two as early childbearing (first birth at ages less than 18 years) and those who had their childbearing at later ages (18 years and above). Thus, the status variable is age at first birth recoded as 1 if the respondents have first birth at ages less than 18 years and 0 if otherwise. The timing variable is age at first birth in quantitative terms. The nature of these variables suggested that a survival analysis approach would be suitable for the multivariate analysis. The basic model used for this study is the proportion hazards model proposed by Cox in 1972. It is also known as the Cox regression model and based on the assumption of proportional hazards. Since it does not assume any particular form of distribution for survival times, it is referred to as a semi-parametric model. Proportional hazard is the ratio of the hazards for two subjects' j and

k at time t is the same for all values of t, i.e.

 $h_1(t)/h_1(t) = \psi$  for  $t \ge 0$   $\psi$  is a constant and  $\psi > 0$ .

If  $\psi < 1$ , the hazard of having the first birth at time t is smaller for an individual and greater if  $\psi > 1$ , compared to the reference category where  $\psi = 1$ . Since  $\psi > 0$ , set  $\psi = \beta$ . Therefore;  $\beta = \log \psi$  (log of the hazard ratio). In such situation, any value of  $\beta$  in the range (- $\infty$ ,  $\infty$ ) will make  $\psi$  positive  $h_t(t) = h_j(t)\exp(\beta)$ . Let  $h_i(t)$  be the hazard of the i-th subject at time t and let X be

20

an indicator variable such that  $x \ge 1$  if a woman has given birth to a child at ages less than 18 years and x=0 if otherwise. If  $x_i$  is the value of x for the i-th woman in the study then;  $h_i(t) = h_0(t) \exp(\beta x_i)$ 

We assumed that the hazard of given birth at a particular time depends on the values  $x_1, x_2, ..., x_p$  of p explanatory variables  $x_1, x_2, ..., x_p$ . Let <u>X</u> be a vector representing the set of the p explanatory variables, so that  $\underline{X} = (x_1, x_2, ..., x_p)$ . Let  $h_0(t)$  be the hazard function for an individual woman whom the values of all the p explanatory variables are zero. Therefore;

for the i-th individual the hazard function is;  $h_i(t) = \psi(\underline{x}_i)h_0(t)$ . Where  $\psi(\underline{x}_i)$  is a function of the explanatory variables for the i-th woman and this is interpreted as the hazard at time t for an individual whose vector of explanatory variables is  $\underline{x}_i$ , relative to the hazard for an individual for whom  $\underline{x} = 0$ . This produces a linear model for the logarithm of the hazard

ratio.

$$\log\{h_{i}(t)/h_{0}(t)\} = \beta_{1}x_{1i} + \beta_{2}x_{2i} + \dots + \beta_{p}x_{pi}$$

 $= \sum_{j=1}^{p} \beta_{j} x_{ji}$ 

Note: There is no assumption concerning the actual form of  $h_0(t)$  the baseline hazard function. This is because, it is not of primary interest and it is not necessary to substitute for it in order to estimate the  $\beta$ -coefficients. Thus the model is non-parametric with respect to time but parametric in terms of the exploratory variables $x_1, x_2, \dots, x_p$ ; and is thus 'semi-parametric'. The explanatory variables are; age, residence, education, region, religion, wealth index, ethnicity, etc. The inclusion of these variables is as a result of their relationship with timing of birth as expressed under variable description above.

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

21
# **CHAPTER FOUR**

# ANALYSIS AND RESULTS

4.1 Univariate

# 4.1.1 Socio Demographic Characteristics of the Respondents

From Table 4.1 below, a higher proportion of respondents in the age group 35-49 (97.7%) have had their first birth followed by the age group 25-34 which had 87.9% and the least in the age group 15-24 with 58.4% from the North Central region. Also, in the North East region, 96.8% of respondents in the age group 35-49 have had their first birth which is highest, followed by the age group 25-34 (95.8%) and the least is observed in the age group 15-24 (69.6%). Across all other regions, North West, South East, South-South, and South West, the highest percentage of those who have their first birth was observed in the age group 35-49, followed by the age group 25-34, and the least was observed in the age group 15-24.

In respect to Education, respondents who had no Education had a higher proportion (91.0%) of those who have their first birth, followed by those with primary Education(90.0%), and the least was observed in those with higher education(63.3%) from the North Central region. The same pattern of those who have had their first births exist in North East, South East, South South and South West with those with none education having the highest proportion of those who have their first birth, followed by primary, secondary, and the least in highest. A slightly different pattern existed in the North West. A higher proportion was observed in the non-education category (88.8%), followed by primary (88.3%) and higher education (83.6%)

A higher proportion of respondents from the North Central region who have others religion (89.5%) have had their first birth followed by Traditional religion (89.1%), Muslim religion (84.6%) and the least was observed in Christianity religion (80.5%). From the North East, a higher proportion of Traditional religion (95.0%) have had their first birth followed by Muslim religion (88.6%), others (88%) and Christianity (83.4%). In the South East region, a higher proportion of respondents who are traditional religion (91.3%) have had their first birth, followed by Muslim (88.9%), others(75.0%) and the least was observed in Christianity (70.3%). In the South west, a higher proportion were from Traditional religion 87.5%, followed by Muslim 82.4%, others (81.8%), and Christian (76.0%)

22

# **CHAPTER FOUR**

# ANALYSIS AND RESULTS

4.1 Univariate

## 4.1.1 Socio Demographic Characteristics of the Respondents

From Table 4.1 below, a higher proportion of respondents in the age group 35-49 (97.7%) have had their first birth followed by the age group 25-34 which had 87.9% and the least in the age group 15-24 with 58.4% from the North Central region. Also, in the North East region, 96.8% of respondents in the age group 35-49 have had their first birth which is highest, followed by the age group 25-34 (95.8%) and the least is observed in the age group 15-24 (69.6%). Across all other regions, North West, South East, South-South, and South West, the highest percentage of those who have their first birth was observed in the age group 35-49, followed by the age group 25-34, and the least was observed in the age group 15-24.

In respect to Education, respondents who had no Education had a higher proportion (91.0%) of those who have their first birth, followed by those with primary Education(90.0%), and the least was observed in those with higher education(63.3%) from the North Central region. The same pattern of those who have had their first births exist in North East, South East, South South and South West with those with none education having the highest proportion of those who have their first birth, followed by primary, secondary, and the least in highest. A slightly different pattern existed in the North West. A higher proportion was observed in the non-education category (88.8%), followed by primary (88.3%) and higher education (83.6%)

A higher proportion of respondents from the North Central region who have others religion (89.5%) have had their first birth followed by Traditional religion (89.1%). Muslim religion

(84.6%) and the least was observed in Christianity religion (80.5%). From the North East, a higher proportion of Traditional religion (95.0%) have had their first birth followed by Muslim religion (88.6%), others (88%) and Christianity (83.4%). In the South East region, a higher proportion of respondents who are traditional religion (91.3%) have had their first birth, followed by Muslim (88.9%), others (75.0%) and the least was observed in Christianity (70.3%). In the South west, a higher proportion were from Traditional religion 87.5%. followed by Muslim 82.4%, others (81.8%), and Christian (76.0%)

22

In the North Central region, 87.4% occupy the poorer wealth category of those who have had their first birth, followed by poorest (85.4%), Middle (84.3%) and the least was observed in the richest wealth index, also in the North East region, a higher proportion of those who have their first birth were from the poorer (89.1%), Middle (88.9%), poorest (87.4%) and the least in richest (83.3%). A similar pattern exists in the South South. In the South West, a higher proportion (90.5%) was from poorest, followed by poorer (83.2%), and the least in richest (76.0%).

A higher proportion of respondents who have had their first birth who live in rural (84.3%) are from the North central region, followed by Urban (77.2%). In the North East and North West, a higher proportion is from Urban, 88.6% and 88.0% respectively and 87.4% and 87.7% from rural respectively. In the South South and South West, a higher proportion was seen in rural, 71.8% and 84.4% respectively, with 60.6% and 74.5% in rural respectively.

Respondents who have never used contraceptives that have their first birth have a higher proportion (82.4%), compared with those who have ever use (82.0%) from the North central region. In the North East and North West region, a higher proportion have ever use, 91.6% and 93.6% respectively compared with those in rural, 87.2% and 87.3% respectively. In the South west region, a higher proportion had never used (81.0%), followed by 76.5%. Respondents who have their age at first intercourse below 15 years that have had their first birth had a higher proportion (87.1%), followed by age group 15-17 (84.8%), 18-24 (78.3%) and the least in 25 years above (73.0%) are from North central region. In the North East region, those below 15 years had a higher proportion (92.5%), followed by 25 years above (87.1%), age 15-17 (85.7%). In the South East, a higher proportion (80.9%) in age group <15 years, followed by 25 above (73.2%), 15-17(70.7%) and the least in 18-24 (68.4%). In the South west, a higher proportion (82.7%) were in age below 15years, 15-17 (80.5%), 18-24 (76.9%), 25 above (76.8%). Those married and not married that have had their first birth had equal proportions across all the regions. Respondents who had one life time sexual partner that have had their first birth had a higher proportion (82.8%) compared to those with more than one (80.8%) that are from North central region. A higher proportion exist with those who have more than one lifetime partner in the North East and North West region, 89 5% and 92.2% respectively, and 86.8% and 71.4% respectively with those who have one lifetime partner.

23

Table 4.1: Percentage distribution of the women with first birth according to region by socio-demographic factors

.

	Region					Total	
	North Central	North East	North West	South East	South South	South West	No of
	%(N)	%(N)	%(N)	%(N)	%(N)	%(N)	women
Age							
15-24 '	58.4(1037)	69.6(1167)	70.5(2223)	35.6(721)	36.3(1465)	42.0(1236	7850
25-34	87.9(1317)	95.8(1264)	95.3(2398)	73.7(1028)	75.1 (1667)	83.7(2120)	9795
35-49	97.7(1127)	96.8(1191)	96.6(2289)	92 8(1029)	96.2(147)	96.3(1894)	8778
Education							
None	91.0(1365)	89.5(2651)	88.8(5418	93.8(193)	95.4(284)	93.8(729)	10640
Primary	90.0(911)	89.6(537)	88.3(822)	91.9(738)	88.4(1167)	92.1(12100	5385
Secondary	67.8(912)	75.3(360)	77.7(542)	60.9(1426)	59.0(2325)	73.5(2384)	7949
Higher	63.3(294)	69.4(72)	83.6(128)	57.7(421)	51.1 (603)	60.9(929)	2447
Religion							
Christian	80.5(1645)	83.4(669)	80.7(414)	70.3(2677)	67.6(4188)	76.(3326)	13318
Muslim	84.6(1130)	88.6(2886)	88.2(6356)	88.9(9)	78.1(114)	82.4(1855)	12556
Traditional	89.1(64)	95.0(40)	87.1(85)	91.3(80)	90.9(44)	87.5(48)	362
Others	89.5(38)	88.0(25)	92.9(56)	75.0(12)	73.5(34)	81.8(22)	188
Wealth Index	Ľ						
Poorest	85.4(740)	87.4(1753)	88.2(2333)	86.5(126)	79.1 (263)	90.5(199)	5415
Poorer	87.4(748)	89.1(844)	87.8(2258)	85.9(227)	79.7(548)	84.3(521)	5415
Middle	84.3(855)	88.9(567)	87.8(1144)	72.8(696)	74.7(939)	83.2(673)	4873
Richer	77.7(619)	85.3(3480	87.9(728)	67.7(920)	63.4(1346)	76.4(1324)	5284
Richest	72.7(520)	83.3(108)	84.6(449)	66.2(810)	61.0(1282)	76.0(2536)	5705
Place of Resi	idence						
Urban	77.2(988)	88.6(891)	88.0(1222)	67.8(1286)	60.6(1430)	74.5(3175)	14640
Rural	84.3(2494)	87.4(2731)	87.7(5688)	73.6(1492)	71.8(2950)	84.4(2077)	6535
Ever use of	contraceptive						
Ever Use	82.0(1018)	91.6(391)	93.6(456)	69 1 (1314	63.9(2631)	76.5(3042)	6535
Never Use	82.4 (2464)	87.2(3230)	87.3(6455)	72.5(1464)	74 5(1749)	81.0(2210)	14640
Age at first	sexual Intercourse						
<15	87.1(661)	92.5(1472)	92.8(2896)	80.9(283)	77 7(748)	82.7(404)	6464
15-17	84.8(1358)	85.7(1509)	85.7(3059)	70.7(819)	70.2(1806)	80.5(1520)	10070
18-24	78.3(1315)	81.1(610)	78.6(894)	68.4(1366)	61.9(1710)	76.9(3031)	8924
25+	73.0(148)	87.1(31)	85 5(62)	73.2(310)	661(115)	76.8(298)	964
Marital sta	tus at lirst birth						1000

#### 100.0(3069) Married 100 0(2671) 100 0(2831) 100.0(1152) 100.0(2101) 100.0(0111) 10000 100.0(269) 100 0(328) 1024 100.0(105) 100.0(119) Not married 100.0(65) 100.0(137) Lifetime number of sexual partners 76.9(2671) 66.3(1139) 16798 71.4(1583) 86.8(5649) One 87.1(2686) 82.8(2494) 80.1(2520) 9103 69.0(1762) 69.4(1116) 92.2(1100) 2+ 89.5(903) 80.8(911)

24

In Table 4.2 below, early childbearing was cross tabulated with some socio-demographic factors.

In the North central region, those respondents who are in the age group 15-24 have a higher proportion (50.4%) of those who had early childbearing compared to those age group 25-34 (31.5%) and 35-49 (29.8%). This was statistically significant. Across the North East, North West and South West, the proportion of those with early childbearing decreases across the age groups while in South East and South South, higher proportions were recorded in the age group 15-24, (30.1% and 40.5%) respectively, followed by the age group 35-49, (19.4% and 33.0%) respectively, with the least in age group 25-34, (14.2% and 21.7%) respectively and these were also statistically significant at p<0.001.

Respondents with no education (41.5%) had a higher proportion of those with Early childbearing, which was followed by those in Primary (38.5%), Secondary (23.8%) and Higher education category (10.2%) from the North central which is statistically significant at p<0.001. In the North East and North West, the proportion of early childbearing decreases across the levels of educations. This was also statistically significant at P<0.001. In the South west, a higher proportion was observed in respondents with none education (28.2%), Primary (22.6%), Secondary (11.9%) and Higher (4.2%). These were also statistically significant. In the North central region, a higher proportion of respondents are traditional religion (49.1%) who had early childbearing, followed by others (38.2%), Muslim (36.5%) and the least was observed in Christianity (33.2%). This association was not statistically significant at p<0.001. In the North west, a higher proportion of Muslim (52.8%) had early child bearing which was followed by others(51.9%). Traditional(45.9%) and the least was observed in Christianity(31.1%). This association was statistically significant at p<0.001. Respondents who are Muslims from the South West showed a higher proportion (20.9%) of those with early childbearing, followed by traditional (14.6%), Christianity (13.9%) and others (0.0%). This was also statistically significant. Respondents from the North Central who showed a higher proportion of early childbearing was found in those in the poorest Wealth Index category (39.8%). followed by poorer (39.1%), Middle (37.5%) and the least in Richest. This was also statistically significant. In the North East, higher proportions in poorest (55.9%), Poorer (54.7%), Middle (50.6%) and the least in Richest (35.6%). In the South South and South West, there were corresponding decrease in proportion of early childbearing across the Wealth Index category. Poorest (42.8% and 29.4% respectively), Poorer (39.8% and 27.1% respectively), Middle (34.3% and

25

22.1% respectively), Richer (30.7% and 18.4% respectively), Richest (14.9% and 10.2% respectively). All these were statistically significant.

Those respondents who live in the rural areas showed a higher proportion (37.5%) of those who had early child bearing than those who live in urban areas (27.7%) from the North Central region. Also, in the North East region, a higher proportion was observed in rural (54.7%) compared to in urban (48.2%). This was a statistically significant association. In the South South and South West region, a higher proportion was observed in the rural areas. (32.5% and 23.0% respectively), and lower proportions in the urban area areas (22.6% and 11.7%). This was also a statistically significant association.

From the North Central, those respondents who had early childbearing that had never used contraceptives had a higher proportion (35.5%) compared to those who fad ever used(33.4%). Accross all the regions, respondents who had never used contraceptives showed a higher

proportion compared to those who had ever used. In the South West, a higher proportion had never used(20.3%) compared to those who had ever used (13.5%). This association was statistically significant at P<0.001

In the North Central region, a higher proportion of respondents who had their age of first sexual intercourse below 15 years(79.7%) had early childbearing, followed by age group 15-17(46.8%) and the least was in those who had first intercourse at ages 18 years and above(0.1%).

Also in the South west region, a higher proportion of early childbearing was observed in those ages at first intercourse below 15 years (74.5%), followed by 15-17(35.3%). These associations were also statistically significant.

The respondents who were not married showed a higher proportion(71.7%) of those who had early child bearing compared to those who were married(1.2%) from the North West. This is a statistically significant association. A higher proportions were also recorded in those that were not married in the South East, South South and South West regions. These associations were also statistically significant.

Those respondents who had one lifetime number of sexual partner showed a higher proportion (51.6%) of those who had early child bearing compared to those who had more than life time number of sexual partners (46.7%). This association was also statistically significant association that are from the North East. In the South West, a higher proportion was also recorded with those with one life time partner (19.9%) compared to those with more than one life time partner (13.1%). This was also a statistically significant association at p<0.001

Table 4.2: Percentage Distribution of Early Childbearing (having children at age less than 18 years) by region according to socio-demographic characteristics

Background		Region					
Characteristics	North Central	North East	North West	South East	South South	South West	- 0
Total							
Age							
p-value	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
15-24	50.4(607)	66.8(811)	67.9(1569)	30.1(256)	40 5 (531)	33.7(519)	55.4(2381)
25-34	31.5(1158)	49.6(1211)	47.4(2285)	14.2(758)	21.7(1253)	14.1(1774)	31 8(2680)
35-49	29.8(1101)	46.9(1153)	44.1(2212)	19.4(954)	33 0(1199)	13.9(1824)	31.7(2678)
Education							
n-value	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
Noпe	41.5(1242)	57.7(2374)	54.0(4810)	35 9(181)	39 0(272)	28.2(684)	50.7(4847)
Primary	38.5(820)	47.4(481)	52 1 (726)	27 9(678)	39 0(1033)	22 6(1115)	36.4(1766)
Secondary	23.8(6.8)	28 8(271)	32 1 (421)	12 7 (868)	24 Q(1371)	11.9(1752)	19.3(1021)
Higher	10 2(186)	196(151)	13 1(107)	20(211)	10 4 (308)	4 2 (566)	7 3(106)
Daligion	1012(100)		10.1(107)	2.3(277)	10 9 (500)	12(000)	
Nengion	0 035	0 000	0.000	0 008	0 730	0.000	0.000
Christian	33 2(1645)	32 3 (558)	31.1(334)	10.000	20 5 (2920	13 0(352)	24 1 (2360)
Muslim	35.2(1043) 36.5(1130)	57.5(350)	52 8(5605)	50 0(2)	23.5(2025	20 0(1528)	47 6(5197)
Traditional	A0 1(5A)	56 1 (20)	JZ.0(J00J)	30.0(0)	25 0(40)	116(11)	37 5(121)
Orboss	43.1(34) 20 2(24)	545(22)	43.3(74)	30.1(73) 111(0)	25.0(40)	0.0(18)	38 8(62)
Uners Maalth Indax	30.2(34)	J4.J(ZZ)	51,5(52)	11.1(9)	30.0(23)	0.0(10)	30.0(02)
weatth muex	0 000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	0.000	0.000
p-value Decessi	20.0(622)	55 0(1522)	52 2 (2057)	26 6(100)	12 8(208)	20 1(180)	499(2354)
Poorest	33.0(033) 20.1(654)	51.3(132)	52.2(2037) 53.0(1093)	25.6(105)	30.8(137)	271(100)	46 6(2078)
Poorer	39.1(034) 37.5(720)	50.6(50.4)	52 1 (1005)	21.0(150) 21.0(507)	33.0(437) 31.3(702)	22 1 (560)	385(1540)
Dichos	37.3(720) 22 $A(A01)$	JU.U(JU4)	10 5(610)	18 0(623)	393(102) 307(851)	18 4(1010)	29 8(1163)
Diebeet	32.4(401) 17.2(270)	43.0(297)	45.J(040) 37 5(370)	10.1(536)	149(781)	10 2(1927)	14 8(605)
Desidence	17.2(378)	33.0(90)	51.5(515)	10.1(550)	14.5(101)	10 2(1521)	110(000)
Residence	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
p-value	0.000	0.000	0.000	15 5 (972)	226(866)	117(2365)	$25 \Lambda(1712)$
Urban	27.7(763)	48.2(789)	47.9(1075)	13.3(073) 21.5(1009)	220(000) 325(2117)	230(1753)	41 7(6028)
Rural	37.5(2104)	54.7(2387)	52.3(4990)	21 3(1090)	52.5(2117)	23.0(1133)	41.7 (0020)
Contraceptive	Use	0.057	0.002	0.055	0.071	0.000	0.000
p-value	0.0289	0.057	0.003	17.0(009)	29 2(1690)	13 5 (2228)	12 0(6154)
Ever Use	33.4(836)	48.3(358)	44.0(420)	17.0(900) 20.2(1062)	20.3(1000)	13 J(2320) 20 2(1790)	42.0(0134)
Never Use	35.5(2031)	53.7(2818)	52.1(5038)	20.3(1002)	51 5(1505)	20 3(1103)	24.3(1300)
Age at First S	exual Intercou	rse	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
p-value '	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	745(591)	745(224)	0.000
<15	79.7(576)	77.0(1361)	71 8(2687)	10.9(230)	74.3(301)	74.3(334)	(4.1()(00)
15-17	46.8(1152)	49.3(1293)	45.7(2622)	35 0(579)	0.2(1124)	0.0(2560)	42.3(0137)
18 above	0.1(1138)	0.0(521)	0.0(756)	0 2(1102)	0.2(1134)	0.0(2300)	0.1(7271)
Marital status	s at first birth		0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.001
p-value	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	27.2(2404)	15 5(2747)	0.001
Married	34.5(2671)	53.1 (3069)	51 2(5937)	11 4(1192)	12 8(227)	21 5(260)	304(7141)
Not married	41.6(137)	61.5(65)	71.7•(120)	33 3(103)	42 0(321)	24 3(203)	414(424)
Life Time nur	mber of Sexual	partners		0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
p-value	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	20 4(1120)	10 0(205 4)	10.000
One	35.7(2064)	55.2(2339)	51.6(4903)	21.4(1130)	20.2(1752)	13.9(2034)	40.8(3330)
2+	32,2(736)	46 7 (808)	50.8(1015)	15.0(775)	29 3(1102)	13.1(2019	20.3(2031)

27

.

In table 4.3 below, the age at First birth was cross tabulated with socio-demographic factors.

A higher proportion of respondents in the North East (12.6%) showed a higher proportion of those who had their First Birth at ages 9-14 compared to those in North Central, North West, South South, South East, and South West who had 6.7%, 10.5%, 5.9%, 3.5% and 2.6% respectively and this was significant at p<0.001.

Respondents whose ages were 15-24 had a higher proportion (10.2%) of age at First birth within age (9-14) compared to those whose ages are (25-34), (35-49) with 6.2% and 7.3% respectively. This was significant at p<0.001. There was a higher proportion of those with no education (10.7%) that had their first birth in the age (9-14) when compared to primary (7.9%), Secondary (2.9%), Higher (0.8%). This was statistically significant at p<0.001.

A higher proportion of respondents who are Muslims (10.1%) had their first birth in the age group (9-14) compared to Christians (4.4%), Traditional (9.0%), Others (6.9%). This was also statistically significant at p<0.001. Respondents who occupy the poorest wealth Index had the highest proportion (10.6%) of those who had their first birth in the age group (9-14) compared to those in Poorer (9.2%), Middle (8.1%), Richer (5.9%) and Richest (2.6%). This was statistically significant.

Respondents in the rural area showed a higher proportion (8.5%) in the age group (9-14) compared to those in the urban area (5.3%). This is significant at p<0.001. Those who had never used contraceptives showed a higher proportion (8.6%) compared to those who had ever used (4.8%). This is statistically significant at p<0.001.

A higher proportion of respondents who are Hausas (10.7%) had their first births in the age (9-14) compared to Igbos (3.6%), Yorubas (2.1%), Others (8.6%). This is statistically significant at p<0.001. A higher proportion of respondents who had their age at First sexual Intercourse below 15 years showed a higher proportion(27.0%) of those who had their first

### birth at age (9-14)

compared to ages at First Sexual Intercourse at (15-17), (18-24), (25 above) with 0.2%. 0.1% and 0.0% respectively. This is a statistically significant association at p<0.001. Those respondents who were never married had a higher proportion (14.4%) of those who had their first birth at age (9-14) compared to those who are married (7.2%). This is a statistically significant association at p<0.001.

Those with one lifetime number of sexual partner had a higher proportion (8.0%) of those which had their first birth at ages (9-14) compared to those with more than one lifetime number of sexual partners (6.3%).



29

# 4.2 BIVARIATE ANALYSIS

Table 4.3: Percentage Distribution of Age at First Birth according to socio-demographic characteristics

Background		Age at Fi	rst Birth		Noof	v2-value	De	Mean Age
Characteristics	9-14	15-17	18-24	25 above	Women	X -value	value	at 1 <sup>st</sup> Birth
Total					··· Official		Varue	
Region								P-0.000
North Central	6.7(192)	28.1 (807)	53.5(1533)	117(335)	2867	2573 015	0.000	19 55+4 2
North East	12.6(400)	40.5(1285)	41.4(1315)	5 5(176)	3176	2010.010	0.000	17 97+3 6
North West	10.5 (634)	41.1(2491)	42.2(2558)	6.3(381)	6064			$18.10\pm3.6$
South East	3.5(69)	15.3(302)	52.6(1037)	28.5(562)	1970			$22.02 \pm 4.9$
South South	5.9(176)	23.7(706)	54.3(1619)	16.1(481)	2982			$20.23 \pm 4.4$
South West	2.6(105)	13.9(573)	59.1(2434)	24.4(1005)	4117			$21.73 \pm 4.4$
Age								P=0.000
15-24	10.2(440)	45.2(1942)	44.5(1913)	0.0(0)	4295	1426 497	0.000	17.37±.2.4
25-34	6.2(523)	25.6(2158)	53.4(4510)	14.8(1249)	8440			$19.95 \pm 4.1$
35-49	7.3(614)	24.5(2065)	48.2(4073)	20.0(1691)	8443			$20.50 \pm 5.0$
Education								P=0.000
None	10.7(1027)	40.0(3820)	41.9(4002)	7.4(712)	9561	3432.476	0.000	18.27±3.8
Primary	7.9(384)	28.5(1382)	53.6(2602)	10.0(484)	4852			$19.31 \pm 4.0$
Secondary	2.9(154)	16.4(867)	61.6(3267)	19.1 (1013)	5301			21.11±4.2
Higher	0.8(11)	6.5(95)	42.7(625)	50.0(731)	1462			24.46±4.7
Religion								P=0.000
Christian	4.4(435)	19.7(1925)	55.3(5404)	20.6(2013)	9777	1504 485	0.000	$20.95 \pm 4.6$
Muslim	10.1(1101)	37.5(4096)	44.5(4857)	7.9(863)	10917			$18.49 \pm 3.9$
Traditional	9.0(29)	28.4(92)	50.0(162)	12.7(41)	324			$19.31 \pm 4.2$
Others	6.9(11)	31.9(51)	46.3(74)	15.0(24)	160			19.45±4.4
Wealth Index			and a starting of					<i>P=0.000</i>
Poorest	10.6(500)	39.3(1854)	42.9(2027)	7.2(339)	4720	2139.06	0 000	$18.30 \pm 3.8$
Poorer	9.2(412)	37.4(1666)	45.4(2025)	8.0(357)	4460			$1857 \pm 3.9$
Middle	8.1(1214)	30.4(1214)	50.2(2008)	11.3(450)	3997			$1929 \pm 4.2$
Richer	5.9(232)	23.8(931)	56.1(2191)	14.1(552)	3906			20 07±4 3
Richest	2.6(106)	12.2(499)	54.8(2244)	30.4(1243)	4092			$22.32 \pm 4.6$
Type Of place of	of residence				0800	205 401	0.000	<i>P=0 000</i>
Urban	5.29(348)	20.3(1364)	53.1(3572)	21.5(1444)	6/28	105.401	0.000	20 93±4 7
Rural	8.5(1228)	33.29(4800)	47.9(6923)	10.4(1496)	14447			$19.05 \pm 4.1$
Ever use of Cor	ntraceptives		55 0(0000)	20 5 (12 41)	0505	750 070	0.000	P=0.000
Ever-Use	4.8(314)	19.5(1272)	55.2(3608)	20.5(1341)	0000	150.970	0.000	2089±4.5
Never Use	8.6(1262)	33,4 (4892)	47.0(6888)	10.9(1599)	14041			19.09 <u>+</u> 4.2
Ethnicity			(0.0(0.00))	5 (210)	5722	2257 120	0.000	P=0.000
Hausa	10 7 (611)	41.8(2389)	42.0(2403)	3.0(319)	2570	2331 420	0.000	$10.00 \pm 3.5$
Igbo	3.6(93)	14.0(359)	52.6(1353)	29.8(703)	2570			$21.76 \cdot 4.4$
Yoruba	2.1(74)	13.3(472)	60 8(2162)		0330			10 16 4 2
Others	8.6(798)	31.6(2944)	49 1 (4578)	10 0(1000)	9320			$D_0 000$
Age at First Sey	cual Intercou	rse	224(1200)	2 5 (202)	5760	14535 20	0.000	r = 0.000
<15	27.0(1557)	47.1(2719)	22.4(1290)	5.5(203)	8137	14333.20	0.000	$10.45 \pm 3.5$ 1975 ± 27
15-17	0.2(14)	42.3(3444)	31.1(4155)	22 9(1404)	6551			22 50 - 22
18-24	01(4)	0 0 (2)	(/ 1(5051)	100 0(720)	720			28 77 + 20
25+	0.0(0)	0.0(0)	0.0(0)	100.0(120)	120			P = 0.000
Marital Status	at First Birth		(0.0/0001)	14 2(2707)	19620	92 223	0.000	1969-11
Married	7.2(1408)	29 2 (5734)	49.3(9681)	0 1 (00)	1024	JLLLJ	0.000	1875-20
Not married	14.4(147)	27 1 (277)	50.2(514)	0.4(00)	1024			P=0.000
Lifetime numbe	er of Sexual p	artners		10.9(1460)	13620	486 38	0 000	1911+41
One	8.0(1094)	327(4462)	48,5(6604)	10.0(1409)	7115	100.50	0.000	20 63+47
2+	6.3(449)	22, 2(1583)	51,9(3693)	19.3(1390)	1115		-	200314.7

30

In Table 4.4, After adjusting for all other variables in the North Central region, For Model 1, Only age and age at First sexual Intercourse were found significant in the cross tabulation. The results showed that those respondents in the age group 25-34 are 0.74 times likely to have early childbearing than those age group 15-24 (95% C.I=0.65-0.85) and respondents of age group 35-49 are 64% as times likely to have early childbearing (95% C.I=0.56-0.73) Respondents in the age group who had their age at first sexual intercourse at the age 15-17 were 29% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those who had it in the age below 15 years of age (95% C.I=0.27-0.34).

In Model 2, respondents who had secondary level of education were 59% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those who had no education (95% C.I=0.49-0.71) while those who had tertiary level of education were just 26% times likely to have early childbearing (95% C.I=0.17-0.39).

There was no variable significant in the cross tabulation for model 3, In Model 4, which is the interaction model, respondents aged 25-34 were 74% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those age group 15-34 (95% C,I=0.64-0.84) while respondents who are aged 35-49 years are 0.63 times likely to have early child bearing (95% C.I=0.55-0.73). Respondents who had their age at First sexual Intercourse in the age 15-17 were 3% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those age group below 15 years of age (95% C.I=0.27-0.34).

#### AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

# 4.3 MULTIPLE REGRESSION ANALYSIS

Table 4.4: Cox-proportional Hazard model of Early Childbearing in the North Central Nigeria

	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Model 4
Background	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio
Characteristics	(95% C.1 of Exp(β)	(95% C.1 of Exp(B)	(95% C.1 of Exp(B)	$(95\% C.lof Exp(\beta))$
Demographic I	Factors			
Age				
15-24				
25-34	0.74 (0.65-0.85)*			0.28(0.15-0.54)*
35-49	0.64(0.56-0.73)*			0.25(0.78-0.80)*
Age at first sex	ual intercourse			
<15				
15-17	0.3(0.27-0.34)*			0.27(0.18-0.39)*
18 above	0.00(0.00-0.00)*			< 0.25(0.00-1E+022)
Marital status	at first birth			
Married				
Not Married				
Place of Reside	nce			
Urban				
Rural	0.94(0.82-1.07)			1.38(0.84-2.27)
Socio-economic	c factors			
Education				
None				
Primary		0.94(0.82-1.07)		0.94(0.58-1.52)
Secondary		0.59(0.49-0.71)*		0.91(0 55-1 51)
Higher		0.26(0.17-0.39)*		0.4(0.05-3.49)
Religion				
Christian				0.00/0.50.1.40
Muslim		1.03(0.91-1.17)		0.93(0.59-1.46)
Traditional		1.29(0.92-1.82)		2.09(0.99-4.38)
Others		0.97(0.58-1.63)		1.49(0.44-3.08)
Wealth Index				
Poorest				1 16/0 7/ 1 92)
Poorer		0.99(0.84-1.15)		1.10(0.74 - 1.02) 1.07(0.67.1.71)
Middle		0.99(0.85-1.17)		1.07(0.07-1.71) 1.21(0.69.2.15)
Richer		0.93(0.77 - 1.12)		1.21(0.00-2.13) 1.05(0.20.2.01)
Richest		0.64(0.49-0.83)*		1 0 J (0.39-2 01)
Behavioural fac	lors			
Ever use of cont	raceptive			

#### **Ever Use** Never Use Lifetime number of sexual partners One 2+ 18849.767 20821.700 18853.357 -2Loglikelihood 2167 589 151.820 2163.735 Chi-square \*Significant at 0.1%; \*\*Significant at 1%; ^Significant at 5%; Ref. Cat.; Reference Category

32

In table 4.5 below, after adjusting for all other variables in the North East, for model 1, the age of respondents and age at First sexual Intercourse were found significant in the cross tabulation which were later moved to the multivariate analysis. Those respondents who are aged 25-29 years 71% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those aged 15-24 years while those aged 34-49 years were 0.68 times likely to have early child bearing(95% C.I=0.62-0.76). Respondents who had sexual intercourse in the ages 15-17 years are 38% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those respondents below 15 years of age (95% C.I=0.35-0.41).

In Model 2, those respondents with secondary education were 56% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.46-0.69) while those with tertiary education were just 37% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.21-0.63). Muslim respondents were 66% more likely to have early childbearing compared to Christian respondents (95% C.I=1.46-1.89).

For model 3, respondents who had more than one lifetime number of Sexual partners were 79% times likely to have early childbearing as compared to those who had just one partner (95% C.I=0.71-0.87).

The Interaction Model which is Model 4, showed that respondents who are aged 25-29 were 73% times likely to have early child bearing compared to those who are aged 15-24(95% C.I=0.66-0.81).Respondents who had their age at sexual intercourse at age 15-17 are 38% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those who had at age below 15years (95% C.I=0.34-0.41). Respondents with lifetime number of sexual partners above 1 are 76% times likely to have early child bearing compared to those with one lifetime number of partners (95% C.I=0.69-0.84).

33

	Model 1	Model 2	bearing in the North E	East Nigeria
Background	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio	Model 3	Model 4
Characleristics	(95% C.1 of Exp(β)	(95% C.lof Fro(B))	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio
Demographic H	Factors	erer Exp(p)	(95% C.1 of Exp(β)	(95% C.I of Exp(β)
Age				
15-24	0.71 (0.04.0.70)			
25-29	0.71(0.64-0.78)*			$0.73(0.66_0.81)*$
34-49	0.69(0.69-0.76)*			0.73(0.00-0.01) 0.72(0.65-0.79)*
Age at first sex	ual intercourse			0.12(0.00 0.10)
<15	0 20(0 25 0 41)			
15-17	(0.00) 0.001 0.001			0.38(0.34-0.41)
18 above	$(0.00)0.00-1E+023^{+}$			0.00(0.00-1E+023)
Marial Status a	<u>at mrst dirtn</u>			
Not Married				
Place of Reside	nco			
Lirban				
Rural				
Socio-economic	factors			
Education				
None				
Primary		0.88(0.78-0.99)^		(0.96)0.84 - 1.08
Secondary		0.56(0.46-0.69)*		0.82(0.67-1.01)
Higher		0.37(0.21-0.63)*		0.82(0.48 - 1.41)
Religion				
Christian				
Muslim		1.67(1.46-1.89)*		1.06(0.92-1.21)
Traditional		1.73(1.23-2.43)**		1.33(0.94-1.88)
Others		1.64(0.97-2.75)		1 07(0 63-1.79)
Wealth Index				
Poorest				1.05(0.05.1.10)
Poorer		0.96(0.87-1.06)		1.05(0.95 - 1.16) 1.07(0.05 - 1.20)
Middle		0.9(0.80-1.02)		1.07(0.93 - 1.20) 1.15(0.07, 1.25)
Kicher		0.86(0.73-1.01)		1.13(0.97 - 1.33) 1.14(0.82, 1.58)
Richest		0.70(0.54-1.06)		1.14(0.02-1.30)
Behavioural fact	ors			
ever use of contractions	raceptive			
lover Use				
rinking to the				
alcohol	or snioking eigarette			
/PC				
ifetime and	of coveral partners			
neume number	of sexual partners			
ne			0 70(0 72 0 87)	0.76(0.82 1.58)*

cin-square	1472.131		W. D.C. Reference Call		
- Chi-source	1/72 151	195.830	23.283	1506.657	
21 - 111 111	27101 673	39075.087	38866.351	37044.278	
2+			0.79(0.72-0.07)	070(0.02-1.30)	

\*Significant at 0.1%; \*\*Significant at 1%; ^Significant at 5%; Ref. C: Reference Category

34

In the table 4.6 below ,respondents aged 25-34 years were 65% times as likely to have early child bearing compared to those age 15-24 years (95% C.I=0.59-0.71) while respondents aged 35-49 years were 52% times as likely to have early childbearing (95% C.I=0.48-0.58). Respondents who had their first sexual Intercourse in the age 15-17 were 39% times as likely to have early child bearing compared to those who had it below 15years of age. (95% C.I=0.36-0.42).

In model 2, respondents with secondary education level of education were 53% times as likely to have early childbearing as compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.43-0.67) while respondents with higher level of education were 23% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.13-0.40).

There was no variable significant in the cross tabulation to be put in the multivariate analysis of Model 3.

The Interaction Model which is Model 4, respondents age 25-34 were 65% times as likely to

have early childbearing compared to those aged 15-24(95% C.I=0.59-0.71) while those aged 35-49 years were 52% times likely to have early child bearing(95% C.I=0.48-0.58)



In the table 4.6 below ,respondents aged 25-34 years were 65% times as likely to have early child bearing compared to those age 15-24 years (95% C.I=0.59-0.71) while respondents aged 35-49 years were 52% times as likely to have early childbearing (95% C.I=0.48-0.58). Respondents who had their first sexual Intercourse in the age 15-17 were 39% times as likely to have early child bearing compared to those who had it below 15years of age. (95% C.I=0.36-0.42).

In model 2, respondents with secondary education level of education were 53% times as likely to have early childbearing as compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.43-0.67) while respondents with higher level of education were 23% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.13-0.40).

There was no variable significant in the cross tabulation to be put in the multivariate analysis of Model 3.

The Interaction Model which is Model 4, respondents age 25-34 were 65% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those aged 15-24(95% C.I=0.59-0.71) while those aged 35-49 years were 52% times likely to have early child bearing (95% C.I=0.48-0.58)

35

Table 4.6: Co	ox-proportional Hazar	d model of Early C	hildbearing in the N	orth West Nigeria
Taute	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Model 4
Background	Hazard Ratio (95% C.I of Exp(B)	Hazard Ratio (95% C.I of Exp(β)	Hazard Ratio (95% C.1 of Exp(ß)	Hazard Ratio (95% Clof Exp())
Domographic F	actors			
Age				
<u>Age</u> 15-24 25-34 35-49	0.65(0.59-0.71)* 0.53(0.48-0.58)*			0.65(0.59-0.71)* 0.52(0.48-0.58)*
Age at first sey	kual intercourse			
<15 15-17 18 above	0.39(0.36-0.42)* 0.00(0.00-7E+024)			0.38(0.35-0.41)* 0.00(0.00-6E+02)
Marital status	s at first birth			
Married Not Married				
Place of Resi	dence			
Urban				
Rural	· Faatars			
Socio-econor	nic laciors			

Education

ducation		100(006122)
None	0.99(0.88-1.12)	1.09(0.90-1.22) $0.88(0.70-1.01)$
Primary	0.53(0.43-0.67)*	1.04(0.59-1.82)
Secondary	0.23(0.13-0.40)*	1.04(0.00-1.00)
Higher		
Religion		0.8(0.64-1.01)
Christian	1 39(1.11-1.74)**	0.82(0.56-1.19)
Muslim	1 29(0.88-1.88)	0.02(0.30-1.10) 0.70(0.45-1.09)
Traditional	1 47 (0.94-2.28)	0.70(0.35-1.05)
Others		
Wealth Index		1.05(0.96-1.14)
Poorest	1.06(0.97 - 1.15)	1.00(1.08-1.35)*
Poorer	1.09(0.98-1.22)	1.20(1.08-1.44)**
Middle	11(0.96-1.27)	1.47(1.00-1.81)*
Richer	1 12(0.90-1.39)	
Richest		
Behavioural factors		
Ever. use of contraceptive		
Ever Use		
Never Use		
Lifetime number of sexual partn	ers	
One		45671.286
2+	47287.167	1425.867
45/115/11.5		



36

In table 4.7 below, after Adjusting for all other variables, in the South East region. For Model 1, Those respondents who had their first sexual intercourse at ages 15-17 were 29% times as likely to have early child bearing (95% C.I=0.23-0.36).

In model 2, those who had secondary school education are 32% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.23-0.46) while those with Higher education were just 8% times as likely to have early childbearing(95% C.I=0.03-0.19).

There was no variable significant at the cross tabulation for model 3. In Model 4, which is the interaction model, respondents who had their age of first Sexual Intercourse at ages 15-17 are 3% times likely to have early child bearing compared to those below 15years of age (95% C.I=0.24-0.37)



AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

Background	Model I Hazard Ratio	Model 2 Hazard Ratio	Model 3	Model 4
Characteristics	(95% Clof Exp(β)	(95% C.1 of Exp(B)	(05% C Lof Evo(R)	Hazard Ratio
Demographic I	Factors		())/OC.FUTEXp(p)	[95% C.1 01 Exp(p
Age				
15-24				
25-29	0.85(0.61-1.18)			0 77(0 55 1 07)
35-49	1.02(0.76-1.38)			0.77(0.33-1.07) 0.92(0.50 + 12)
Age at first sex	ual intercourse			0.02(0.33-1.13)
<15				
15-17	0.29(0.23-0.36)*			03(021-037)*
18 above	0.00(0.00-001)*			$0.0(0.040.01)^*$
Marital status	at first birth			
Married				
Not Married	0.87-1.78			1.21(0.84-1.74)
Place of Reside	ence			
Urban				
Rural				
Socio-economi	ic factors			
Education				
None				
Primary		0.69(0.52-0.91)**		0 88(0 66-1 18)
Secondary		0.32(0.23-0.46)*		0 53 (0 36-0 78)
Higher		0.08(0.03-0.19)*		0 24(0.95-0.61)**
Religion				
Christian				
Muslim				
Other				
Mealth Index				
Poopest				
Poorer		1.07(0.73-1.58)		1 03(0 69 1 53)
Middle		1.32(0.92-1.90)		1 17 (0 81 1 69)
Richer		1.11(0.75-1.65)		1 06(0 70 1 59)
Richest		1.03(0.64-1.64)		1 23 (0 76 1 98)
Behavioural f	actors			
Ever use of co	ntraceptive			
Ever Use				
Never Use				
Drinking alco	hol or smoking cigaret	le		
No				
Yes				

# Lifetime number of sexual partners One 2+ -2Loglikelihood 1213.872 5213.215 4187.661 -2Loglikelihood 1213.872 5213.215 916.513 Chi-square 894.785 \*Significant at 0.1%; \*Significant at 5%; R:/. Cat.; Reference Category

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Madal 1
Background	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio
Characteristics	(95% C.1 of Exp(B)	(95% C.1 of Exp(β)	(95% C.1 of Exp(B)	(95% C.I of Exp(B)
Demographic Fa	clors			
Age				
15-24	0.95(0.01, 1.10)			
25-29	0.00(0.01-1.18)			0.77(0.55-1.07)
35-49	1.02(0.76-1.38)			0.82(0.59-1.13)
Age at first sexu	al intercourse			
<15	0.20(0.22.0.20) +			
15-17	$0.29(0.23-0.36)^{*}$			0.3(0.24-0.37)*
18 above	$0.00(0.000.01)^{+}$			0.00(0.00-0.01)*
Marital status a	<u>t first birth</u>			
Not Married	0 97 1 79			
Place of Posidor	0.07-1.70			1 21 (0.84-1.74)
Lichan				
Rural				
Socio-economic	factors			
Education				
None				
Primary		0.69(0.52-0.91)**		0.88(0.66-1.18)
Secondary		0.32(0.23-0.46)*		0.53(0.36-0.78)**
Higher		0.08(0.03-0.19)*		0.24(0.95-0.61)**
Religion				
Christian				
Muslim				
Traditional				
Others				
Wealth Index				
Poorest		107(072150)		1 03 (0 60 1 53)
Poorer		1.07(0.73-1.58)		1.03(0.09 - 1.03) 1.17(0.81 - 1.69)
Middle		1.11(0.75.1.65)		1.06(0.70-1.59)
Dishar		1.11(0.75-1.05) 1.03(0.64-1.64)		1 23(0.76-1.98)
Richest	01070	1.03(0.011.01)		
Ever use of cor				
Ever Use of col	malepuve			
Never Use				
Drinking alcol	of or smoking cigare	tte		
No				
Yes				
Lisetime numb	per of sexual partners	S		
One				
2+				1197 661
21 00/11/11	4213.872	5213.215		4107.001
-crogikelinoo		111 173		910.513

38

In table 4.8 below, after adjusting for other variables in Model 1, respondents aged 25-34 years were 68% times as likely to have early child bearing compared to those aged 15-34(95% C.I=0.56-0.83). Respondents who had their first Intercourse at age 15-17 were 28% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those of age at first intercourse below 15(95% C.I=0.24-0.33).

In Model 2, Respondents who are from the richest wealth Index category are 46 times likely to have early childbearing than those in the Poorest category(95% C.I=0.34-0.63).

There was no variable significant in the cross tabulation stage for the multivariate analysis of Model 3.

In model 4, which is the interaction Model, respondents aged 25-34 years are 0.65 times likely to have early child bearing compared to those age group 15-24 years. (95% C.I=0.53-0.80). Also respondents who had their age at First sexual Intercourse in the age 15-17 were 29%

times as likely to have early child bearing. (95% C.I=0.25-0.33).

39

<b>Table 4.8:</b> C	Cox-proportional Haza	ard model of Farly (	bildhooring in the C	
	Model 1	Model 2	introbearing in the S	outh South Nigeria
Background	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio	Model 3	Model 4
Characteristics	(95% C.1 of Exp(β)	(95% C L of Exp(B)	Hazard Katio	Hazard Ratio
Demographic F	actors	(to the endit Lxp(p)	(95% C.1 OF Exp(p)	(95% C 1 of Exp(b)
Age				
15-24				
25-29.	0.68(0.56-0.83)*			0 65 (0 53 0 80) *
35-49	0.9(0.75-1.09)			0.03(0.33-0.00) 0.82(0.67-1.01)^
Age at first sexu	al intercourse			0.02(0.07-1.01)
<15				
15-17	0.28(0.24-0.33)*			0.29(0.25-0.33)*
18 above	0.00(0.00-0.01)*			0.00(0.00-0.01)*
Marital status a	at first birth			
Married				
Not Married	1.36(1.12-1-1.65)**			1.38(1.14-1.68)**
Place of Reside	nce			
Urban				
Rural	0			
Socio-economic	<i>factors</i>			
Education				
None				
Primary		1.14(0.91-1.42)		1.15(0.92-1.44)
Secondary		0.81 (0.65-1.02)		0.82(0.64-1.05)
Higher		0.49(0.32-0.74)**		0.88(0.57-1.35)
Keligion				
Unristian				
Traditional				
Others				
Wealth Index				
Poorest				
Poorer		1.01(0.77-1.32)		1.02(0.77-1.37)
Middle		0.91(0.71-1.18)		0.99(0.75-1.30)
Richer		0.82(0.63-1.07)		0.89(0.67-1.18)
Richest		0.46(0.34-0.63)*		0.75(0.54-1.04)
Behavioural fac	clors			
Ever use of con	traceptive			
Ever Use				
Never Use				
Lifetime numb	er of sexual partners			
One				
2+				10411 010

12903.087

10411.313



\*Significant at 0.1%; \*\*Significant at 1%; ^Significant at 5%; Ref. Cat.; Reference Category



In table 4.9 below, in Model 1, those respondents who had their first Sexual Intercourse at age 15-17 were 26% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those who had Intercourse below 15 years (95% C.I=0.21-0.31).

In Model 2,those with secondary School education were 59% times as likely to have early child bearing compared to those without education (95% C.I=0.12-0.36). Respondents in the richest wealth Index were just 49% times as likely to have early child bearing (95% C.I=0.35-0.72).

In model 3, those who had never used contraceptives were 69% times as likely to have early child bearing compared to those who have ever used contraceptives (95% C.I=0.58-0.83). Respondents who had more than one lifetime of sexual partners were 72% times likely to have early child bearing (95% C.I=0.60-0.86).

In Model 4, those who had their first Intercourse at age 15-17 were 24% times as likely to have early child bearing compared to those below 15 years of age (95% C.I=0.19-0.29). Those who are not married were 87% times more likely to have early child bearing (95% C.I=0.19-0.29).

#### AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

Table 4.9: (	ox-proportional Haz	ard model of Farly	Childhoaring in the	Could Illood NI monto
Background Characteristics	Model 1 Hazard Ratio (95% C.1 of Exp(β)	Model 2 Hazard Ratio (95% C.1 of Exp(8)	Model 3 Hazard Ratio (95% C L of Exp(ß)	Model 4 Hazard Ratio
Demographic F	actors		(John Chi Ch Dh P(P)	())/(C.) () (DAP())
<u>Age</u> 15-24				
25-29	0.73(0.58-0.92)^			0.76(0.50, 0.06)
35-49	0.75(0.59-0.95)			0.70(0.33-0.30) 0.78(0.61-0.99)^
Age at first sexu	ual intercourse			0.70(0.01-0.00)
<15				
15-17	0.26(0.21-0.31)*			0 24(0 19-0 29)*
18 above	0.00(0.00-0.03)*			0.00(0.00-0.00)*
Marital status a	at first birth			
Married				1.88(1.39-2.52)
Not Married	1.59(1.19-2.11)**			
Place of Reside	nce			
Urban				
Rural	1.21(1.01-1.46)			1.13(0.89-1.45)
Socio ocoponio	factors			



	6545.161 1621.845				
-2Loglikelihood Chi-square		145.469	32.916	1677.799	
		8034.719	8082.844	6407.192	

\*Significant at 0.1%; \*\*Significant at 1%; ^Significant at

42

In table 4.10 below for the cox proportional hazard model for the whole Nigeria, For Model 1, respondents who are from the North West were 83% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those from the North Central (95% C.I=0.78-0.89). Also, respondents from the South South were 75% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those from the North Central (95% C.I=0.68-0.83)

Respondents age 25-34 were 69% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those age group 15-24 (95% C.I=0.65-0.73) while respondents aged 35-49 were 65% times as likely to have early childbearing (95% C.I=0.61-0.68). Those respondents who had their age at first sexual Intercourse at age 15-17 were 35% times as likely to have early childbearing (95% C.I=0.33-0.36).

In Model 2, those who had secondary education were 59% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.55-0.65) while those with

tertiary education were just 3% times likely to have early child bearing compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.25-0.36). Respondents who are Muslim were 32% times more likely to have early child bearing than the Christian respondents (95% C.I=0.59-0.72). In Model 3,respondents who had never used contraceptives were 63% times likely to have early childbearing than those who had ever used (95% C.I=0.60-0.67) and respondents who had more than one lifetime of sexual partners were 8% times likely to have early child bearing.

In Model 4, respondents from the North West were 83% times likely to have early childbearing compared to respondents from the North Central. (95% C.I=0.76-0.91). Respondents age 25-34 were 69% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those ages 15-24 (95% C.I=0.66-0.73). Those respondents who had their age at First sexual Intercourse at age 15-17 were 34% times likely to have early child bearing compared to those below 15 years (95% C.I=0.33-0.36) Respondents who had more than one lifetime of sexual partners were 75% times as likely to have early child bearing (95% C.I=0.71-0.79).

In table 4.10 below for the cox proportional hazard model for the whole Nigeria, For Model 1,respondents who are from the North West were 83%times likely to have early childbearing compared to those from the North Central (95% C.I=0.78-0.89). Also, respondents from the South South were 75% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those from the North Central (95% C.I=0.68-0.83)

Respondents age 25-34 were 69% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those age group 15-24(95% C.I=0.65-0.73) while respondents aged 35-49 were 65% times as likely to have early childbearing (95% C.I=0.61-0.68). Those respondents who had their age at first sexual Intercourse at age 15-17 were 35% times as likely to have early childbearing (95% C.I=0.33-0.36).

In Model 2, those who had secondary education were 59% times as likely to have early childbearing compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.55-0.65) while those with

tertiary education were just 3% times likely to have early child bearing compared to those with no education (95% C.I=0.25-0.36). Respondents who are Muslim were 32% times more likely to have early child bearing than the Christian respondents (95% C.I=0.59-0.72). In Model 3, respondents who had never used contraceptives were 63% times likely to have early childbearing than those who had ever used (95% C.I=0.60-0.67) and respondents who had more than one lifetime of sexual partners were 8% times likely to have early child bearing.

In Model 4, respondents from the North West were 83% times likely to have early childbearing compared to respondents from the North Central. (95% C.I=0.76-0.91). Respondents age 25-34 were 69% times likely to have early childbearing compared to those ages 15-24 (95% C.I=0.66-0.73). Those respondents who had their age at First sexual Intercourse at age 15-17 were 34% times likely to have early child bearing compared to those below 15 years (95% C.I=0.33-0.36) Respondents who had more than one lifetime of sexual partners were 75% times as likely to have early child bearing (95% C.I=0.71-0.79).

#### AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

	Model 1	Model 2	Model 3	Model 4
	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio	Hazard Ratio
ckground	(95% C.1 of Exp(B)	(95% C.1 of Exp(β)	(95% Clof Exp(β)	(95% ClofExp(B)
aracteristics				
emographic factors				
gion				
orth C (Ref. C)	0.06(0.89-1.02)			0 96(0 89-1 04)
orth East	0.90(0.85 - 1.02)			0.83(0.76-0.91)*
orth West	0.83(0.78 - 0.83)			0.85 (0.68-1.07)
outh East	0.79(0.70-0.85)			0 90(0 81-0 99)^
outh South	0.78(0.71-0.05)			0.83(071-095)
outh West	0.75(0.68-0.83)			
5.24 (Ref. C)				0.69(0.66-0.73)*
5.24	0.69(0.65-0.73)*			0.65(0.62-0.69)*
25 19	0.65(0.61-0.68)*			
Age at first sexual i	ntercourse			
(IS (Ref C)				0.34(0.33-0.36)*
15 17	0.35(0.33-0.36)*			0.00(0.00-0.00)*
18 above	0.00(0.00-0.01)*			
Place of Residence				
Uchan (Ref C)				0 96(0 89-1 02)
Rucal	0.95(0.90-1.01)			
Socio economic la	clors			
Education				
None (Ref. C)		0 00(0 07 0 00)**		1.05(0.99-1.12)
Deimacu		0.92(0.87-0.90)		0.81 (0.74-0.88)
Secondary		0.60(0.55-0.04)		0.75(0.61-0.93)
Higher		0.30(0.25-0.30)		
Deligion				
Christian (Ref. C)		1 20(1 25 1 40)*		1.03(0.96-1.11)
Muslim		1.32(1.25-1.40)		1.10(0.94-1.29)
Tenditional		1.29(1.12-1.40)*		0.98(0.76-1.26)
Orbors		1.15(0.91-1.44)		
Wealth Index				
Poorest Rof Cl				1 06(0 99-1.12)
Poorer (Nel. C)		1.01(0.95-1.00)		1.12(1.04-1.19)
Middle		0.99(0.94-1.06)		1.11(1.02-1.21)
Dichor		0.93(0.87-1.00)*		1.07(0.95-1.21)
Plahaet		0.71 (0.65-0.79)		
<b>E</b> ebodotor				0.10.94 1.20)
House		50 0 721		104(004-123)
labo		0 65(0 59-0 72)		
1800		0.50(0.45-0.55)		1.059.0.30-1.157
		0.99(0.94-1.04)		
Balactional C	tor:			
Behavioural lac				107(100114)
Ever use of com	race <u>ptive</u>		0 63(0 60 0.67)	1.07(1.00-1.14)
Ever Use (Rel. C				
Never Use	i cinarelle			
Urinking alcoh	DI OF SHIOKING CIESTER			



44

The Hazard Functions showing the different variables that were significant in the whole country was shown below.

Those respondents from the North East and North West showed a higher hazard of early child bearing which was followed by respondents in the North Central region. Respondents from the South West and South east exhibited lower hazard rates compared to other regions. In Figure 4.2, respondents ages group 15-24 showed a higher hazard of early child bearing compared to those age groups 25-34 and 35-49.

In Figure 4.3, respondents who had their age at First sexual Intercourse at ages 15-17 showed a higher hazard of early childbearing compared to those who had it at ages below 15 and ages 18 and above.

Figure 4.4 shows that respondents with no education exhibited a higher hazard of early childbearing, followed closely by those with primary education. The least hazard of early child bearing was observed in those with respondents with Higher education.

In Figure 4.5, respondents whose religions were Islam showed a higher hazard of early childbearing. The least hazard was observed in respondents who are Christians. Figure 4.6 showed that respondents with one lifetime number of sexual partners had a higher hazard of early childbearing compared to those with two or more lifetime number of sexual partners.

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT



Figure 4.1: Cummulative Hazard Function Showing Region across Nigeria

46



Figure 4.2: Cummulative Hazard Function Showing Age of Respondents across Nigeria

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT



Figure 4.2: Cummulative Hazerd Function Showing Age of Respondents across Nigeria

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT



Figure 4.3: Cummulative Hazard Function showing Age at First Sexual Intercourse across Nigeria





Figure 4.4: Cummulative Hazard Function showing Education across Nigeria





AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT



Figure 4.6: Cummulative Hazard Function showing Life Time Number of Sexual Partners across Nigeria

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

# CHAPTER FIVE

# DISCUSSION

This paper examined the association between early childbearing and factors that can affect early childbearing among women of child bearing ages in relation to each specific regions and across Nigeria as a whole. It was intended to assess the contribution of selected sociodemographic characteristics of women to the pattern of early child bearing when the determinants were controlled for and vice versa.

In this study, a higher proportion of the women aged 15-24 had early childbearing and more than half had no education. This can be explained by the fact that female rights are undermined and female education is low in developing countries, Nigeria inclusive. Most of the respondents occupy the poorest wealth category Index (49.9%) which is a reflection of the poverty level in Nigeria where majority of Nigerians live below the poverty line. Most of the respondents were rural dwellers (41.7%), which is a reflection of preponderance of

Nigerians in the rural areas. This is in line with study by Ekong (2003) where it was found that majority of Nigeria's population live in rural communities (about 70%)

The prevalence of contraceptive use is high (42.0%) which is similar to studies done in Indonesia among married women by Rahyu et al 2009 where the prevalence was 57.4%, but it differs from a study by Adamu et al 2009 where the prevalence was 21.2% in a study in Ghana and in Mali 8%.

From this study, a relatively high number of women have experienced sexual intercourse at ages below 15 years of age. This is in line with a study by Olalekan A. Uthman(2008). Respondents who were not married at the time of first Birth in Nigeria were higher (41.4%) compared to those who were married. This is not in agreement with the findings agreed with the NDHS in which 70% of women of reproductive age were found to married (NPC. 2000).

In this study, the results showed that almost all the factors such as region, age, education, religion, Wealth Index, type of place of residence , Contraceptive use, ethnicity, age at first sexual Intercourse, Marital status at First birth, Life time number of sexual partners have significant relationships with the ages at which first birth occurs. This was supported by

#### 52
previous studies (Adebimpe et al, 2011, Akpa and Ikpotiyin, 2012; Blom and Redy, 1986; Choe et al. 2005).

A higher proportion of the respondents from the Northern region experience early ages at first birth compared to all other regions of Nigeria. This is in line with findings by (NPC, 2004; United Nations 2007). Respondents with higher level of education had a higher proportion of those who had their age at first birth above twenty five years of age. This is in agreement with a study in Osun by (Oyefara, 2012). Better educated women have broader knowledge, higher socio-economic status and less fatalistic attitudes towards reproduction than do less educated women. A higher proportion of respondent in the Urban setting experience their age at First birth well over 18 years of age. Women in the urban settings stayed longer before they get married. This may be as a result of longer search for better education, white collar jobs and establishing themselves in business towards self sustainability.

A larger proportion of respondents in the poorest wealth Index category experience early ages

at first birth. This could be as a result of the fact that majority of poor people do not have occupation that keep them so busy, hence they find recourse in engaging in sexual activities which thereby lead to early ages at First birth. But, in the contrary, in a study conducted among rural Yoruba women, it was found that level of fertility was positively associated with high income level. (Adebimpe et al, 2011)

A Cox proportional hazard model approach was used to test for the behaviour of the model of early child bearing across all the regions. The Model 1 includes the Demographic factors (Age, Age at First Sexual Intercourse, Marital Status at birth, place of Residence. The Model 2 includes the socio-economic factors (Education, Religion and Wealth Index). The Model 3 includes the behavioural factors (Ever use of Contraceptives and Lifetime number of sexual partners). The Model A is the interaction Model which includes all the variable in Model 1, Model 2, Model 3

In the North Central region, current age of respondents and the age at First Sexual Intercourse were found to be significantly associated with early child bearing. This may be as a result of

the fact that in the north, child bearing starts at younger ages. This is in line with studies by Olalekan (2008) where it was reported that in the North Central region, the highest proportion

of women reported early sexual debut.

The level of education of the women was significantly associated with early childbearing. The higher the level of education, the lesser the chances of early childbearing. This is in line

53

with studies done all over the world (Ainsworth 1994; Martin Juarez 1995; Akpa and Ikpotiyin, 2012). However, this study differs from that of Cochraine, 1979 that argued that identifying the direction of any causal relationship between early childbearing and education is complex.

In the Interaction Model, where all the variables for model 1, model 2, Model 3 were included. only age of respondents, and age at which respondents had their first Intercourse. This may be due to the fact the Age at First sexual Intercourse goes a long way in determining exposure to sexual activities which variably leads to pregnancy.

In the North East regions, age of respondent and age at First Sexual Intercourse were significantly related with early child bearing. Education plays a significant role across all the regions of the North. This may be due to the fact that in the North, not much attention is paid to Western education, as soon as the girl manages to have a primary education; she is as good

as being married out to any available suitor. Also, religion which is a very strong determinant of so many things plays a dominant factor in early child bearing. In the North east where majority are

Muslims and Islamic religion supports sexual Intercourse within the confines of marriage, hence most Muslims tend to give birth early.

In the Southern part of the country, age at which Intercourse begins, and Education also play a dominant role. The likelihood of having early child bearing among those with tertiary education was very low. This is in line with studies by (kirk and pillet, 1998: Akpa and ikpotiyin 2012, Neeru and Gupta, 2003). Those who had higher levels of education requires much needed time to devote to their educational pursuit which makes them delay child bearing and amongst those that had sex tend to use contraceptives (Raini and Radheshyam

In the South western part of the country, Age at First Sexual Intercourse, education, contraceptive use played a significant role. In the South west, a larger proportion of people are aware of Contraceptives, thereby using it and helping them to delay childbearing.

2007)

54

# CONCLUSION

Early childbearing is still a problem in Nigeria, although variation exists across the regions. Also, the identified predictions of early childbearing were found to be different across the regions. Early childbearing was more prominent across the regions in the Northern part of Nigeria than the Southern regions. Factors that contributed to regional differential in early childbearing include age at first Sexual intercourse and Education

### RECOMMENDATION

- 1. Education, which played a significant role in early childbearing across all the regions should be improved Female education up to at least secondary level must be sustained in Nigeria
- 2. Policy that favour childbearing postponement should be enacted in Nigeria. This has tendency to increase the age at first birth and thus improving socio-economic advancement of women in Nigeria.
- 3. In the regrons of the North, where early childbearing was found to be prominent, a partnership must exist between local communities and Government to ensure that the local communities and leaders help in seeing that girls are kept in School longer before they are married out.

#### AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

55

# REFERENCES

Adanu, M. K., Seffah, J. D., and Hill, A. G. 2009. Contraceptive Use by Women in Accra Ghana. African Journal of Reproductive Health. 13.1: 123-133.

Adebimpe, W. O., Asekun, O. E., Bamidele, J. O., and Abodunrin, O. 2011. A Comparative Study of Socio-demographic Determinants and Fertility Pattern among Women in Rural and Urban Communities in South Western Nigeria. Continental Journal of medical research 5.1: 32-40.

Adetoro, O. O., Babarinsa, A. B., and Sotiloyo. 1991. Socio Cultural Factors in Adolescent Septic Illicit Abortion in Ilorin, Nigeria. African Journal of medicine and medical sciences. 20.2: 1-53.

Ainsworth, M. 1994. Socio-economic Determinants of Fertility in Sub-Saharan Africa. Washington D. C, World Bank.

Akin, A. 2007. Emergence of Family Planning Programme in Turkey, Robbinson W.C and

Ross J.A (eds). The Global Family Revolution: Three decades of population policies and programmes. Washington; Green Press Initiative.

Akpa, O. M., and Ikpotiyin, O. 2012. Modelling the Determinants of Fertility among Women of Childbearing Age in Nigeria: Analysis using Generalized Linear Modelling Approach. International Journal of humanities and social science. 2-18.

Atkins, D. C. 2005. Using Multilevel Models to Analyse Couple and Family Treatment Data: Basic and Advanced Issues. Journal of family psychology 19: 98-110

Atuyambe, L., Mirembe, F., Johansson A., kirumira E. K and Faxelid, E. 2005. Experiences of Pregnant Adolescents-voices from Wakiso district, Uganda, African Health Sciences. 5.4: 304-309.

Bankole, A., Oye-Adediran, B. A., Singh, S., Adewole, I. F., Wulf. D. Sedgh, G. and Hussein, R. 2006. Unwanted Pregnancies and Induced Abortion in Nigeria: Causes and Concequences. Guttmacher Institute. Baschieri, A. and Itinde, A. 2007. The Proximate Determinants of Fertility and Birth Intervals in Egypt. An Application of calendar data. Demographic Research. 16.3: 59-96.

56

Bloom, D. and Canning, D. 2003. Contraception and the Celtic Tiger. Economic and Social Review. 34: 229-247.

Blossfeld, H. P. and De Rose, A. 1992. "Educational Expansion and the Changes in Entry into Marriage and Motherhood: The Experience of Italian Women. Genus. 48.3-4: 73-89.

Caldwell, J. 1976. Toward a Restatement of Demographic Transition Theory. Population and Development Review 2.3-4: 321-366

Celline Ferre. 2009. Age at First Child, Does Education Delay Fertility Timing? The case of Kenya, Policy Research Working Paper. World Bank, South Asia Region, Human Development Division.

Choe, M. K., Thapa, S., and Mishra, V. 2005. Early Marriage and Early Metherhood in Nepal. Journal of Biosocial Science 37.2:143-62.

- CIA 2011. Retrieved July 03, 2013, from Country Comparison. Total fertility rate. The Agency central Intelligence the Book by Fact World https://www.cla.gov/library/publications/ the world-fact book/ rank order /2127 rank.html.
- Cosle, A. J. 1976. The Demographic Transition. Congress International de la population. 1 53-71.
- Cohen, B. 1993. Fertility levels: differentials and trends in K.A feet. Population Division Department of Economic and Social affairs, UN Secretariat, New York.
- Dahlback, E., Maindolwa, M., Kasonka, L., Bergstom and Ransjo-Avidson, A.B. 2007. "Unsafe induced abortions among adolescent girls in Lusaka. Health care for women
  - International 28.7: 654-676.
- Department of Economic and Social Affairs, Population Division, United Nations, World.

Population Prospects, 2006 Revision, New-York: United Nations, 2007 Development.

30.2 207-225

Dowing, J., Bellis, M. A. 2009. Early Pubernal Onset and its Relationship with Sexual Risk Taking, Substance Use and Anti-social Behaviour: A Pretominary Cross- sectional

Staty BUSC Public Health 9 \$45.

AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

37

Early Child bearing in Nigeria. 2004: A Continuing Challenge. Reserach in Brief No. 2. The Alan Guttmacher Institute.

Easterlin, R. A. 1983. Modernization and Fertility: A Critical Essay. New York Academic Press. 562-586.

Federal Office of Statistics. 1992. Nigeria Demographic and health Survey 1990.

George, E. Ready 2007. Why Women are Embracing the New Later Motherhood. Basic Books.

Gobopamang Letamo and Halima N. Letamo. 2001-2002. The Role of Proximate Determinants in Fertility Transition. A comparative study of Botswana, Zambia, and Zimbabwe. SA Journal of Demography. 8.1.

Goliber Tom, Rachel Sanders and John Ross. 2009. Analysing Family Planning Needs in Nigeria: Lessons for repositioning family Planning in Sub-saharan Africa, Washington D.C. futures group.

Grant, M. J. and Hallman, K. K. 2008. Pregnancy-related School dropout and Prior School Performance in Kwazulu-Natal, South Africa. *Studies in Family planning*. 39.4: 369-382.

Grindstaff, C., Balakrishnan, T.R., and Devit, D. 1991. Educational attainment, age at first birth and Life-time Fertility: an analysis of Canadian Fertility survey data. The Canadian Review of Sociology and Anthropology. 28.3: 324-339.

Gupta, N. Mahy. 2003. Adolescent Childbearing in Sub-Saharan Africa: Can increased Schooling alone raise ages at First birth. *Demographic Research*. 8.4: 93-106.

Gyepi-Garbrah, B.1985a. Adolescent Fertility in Sub Saharan Africa: An overview. Boston and Nairobi. The pathfinders Fund.

Gyimah, S. O. 2003. A cohort Analysis of the timing of first Birth and Fertility in Ghana.

. Population Research and Policy Review. 22.3:351-266.

Hamilton, B. E., Martin, J. A. and Ventura, S. J. Births. 2009. Preliminary data for 2007, National Vital Statistics Reports. 57:12. National Centre for Health Statistics.

58

Hoffert, S. L., Reid, L. And Mott, F. L. 2001. The Effects of Early Childbearing on School Overtime in Egypt. *Family planning Perspectives.* 33.6: 259-267.
An application of Calendar Data. *Demographic Research.* 16.3: 59-96.

Isiugo-Abanihe, U. C. 2003. Male Role and Responsibility in Fertility and Reproductive Health in Nigeria. Centre for population activities and Education for Development Ibadan.

Jewkes, R., Morrell, R. and Christofides. 2009. Empowering Teenagers to Prevent Pregnancy: Lessons from South Africa Culture. Health and Sexuality. 11.7: 675-688.

Kitetu, C. 2001. Gender in Education: an overview of developing trends in Africa. CRILE working paper, Egerton University, Kenya.

Le Grand, T. and Barbieri, M. 2002. The Possible Effects of Child Survival on Women's Ages at First Union and Child Birth in Sub-Saharan Africa. *European Journal of* 

Population. 18.4: 361-86.

Lloyd, C. and Mensah, B. S. 2002. Marriage and Childbirth as Factors in School Exit: An Analysis of DHS Data from Sub-saharan Africa. *Population council working paper 19.* 

Magadi, M. A., Agwanda, A. O. and Obare, F. O. 2007b. A Comparative Analysis of the Use of Maternal Health Sciences between Teenagers and Older Mothers in Sub-Saharan
 Africa; Evidence from Demographic and health Surveys (DHS). Social Science and Medicine. 64.6: 1311-1325.

Makinde- Adebusoye, P. 2001. Social –Cultural Factors Affecting Fertility in Sub-Saharan Marriage and Motherhood: *The experience of Italian women, Genus.* 48.3-4: 73-89.

Mathews, T. J. Brady, M. S. and Hamilton. 2009. Delayed Child Bearing. More Women are having their First Child later in Life. NCHS Data Brief

Meekers, D. and Ahmad, G. 1999. Pregnancy Related School Dropout in Botswana.

Population Studies. 53.2: 195-209.

Mensh, B. S., Clark, W. H., Lloyd, C. B., and Erulkar, A. S. 2001. Premarital Sex, School Girl Pregnancy and School Quality in Rural Kenya. Study Family Planning. 32: 285-301.

59

Merill, R. M., Fugal R. M., Novilla, L.B. and Rapheal, M. C. 2005 Cancer Risk A ociared with Early and Late Maternal Age at First Birth. *Gynecol Oncol Mar* 96.3, 583-593.

<sup>N</sup>lirowsky, J. and Ross, E. C. 2002. Depression, Parenthood, and Age at Fir t Birth Social Science and Medicine. 54.8: 1281-1298.

Mischell, D. R. 2007. Family Planning: Contraception, Sterilization and Pregnancy Termination. *Comprehensive Gynecology* (5th ed.)

Moore, K. A., Miller, B. C., Glei, D. et al. 1995. Adolescent Sex, Contraception and Child Bearing: A review of recent research. Washington DC: Child Trends.

National Population Commission (NPC), Federal Republic of Nigeria and ORC Macro. Nigeria Demographic and Health Survey 2003, Calverton, MD, USA: NPC and ORC Macro, 2004.

National population Commission and ICF Macro (2009). Needs of Married Adolescent Girls in Nsuka, Nigeria J Sociology Soc Anth. 3.1:1-6.

Ngalinda, I. 1998. Age at first Birth, Fertility and Contraception in Tanzania. PhD Thesis Dept.of Demography, Humboldt University of Berlin.

Nigeria Demographic and health survey, 2008. ICF Macro, Calverton. Maryl nd USA.

Norville, C., Gomez, R. and Brown, R. L. 2003. Some Causes of Fertility Rates Movements University of Waterloo, Institute of Insurance and Pension Research

Olalekan A. Uthman. 2008. Geographical Variations and Contextual Effects on Age of Initiation of Sexual Intercourse among Women in Nigeria: a multilevel and spatial analysis. International Journal of Health Geographics 7:27

Olukorede, W. E. and Ajadi, A. O. 2009. Causes and Consequeces of Induced Abortion among University undergraduates in Nigeria. Paper, 26<sup>th</sup> International Population Conference of the International Union for the Scientific Study of Population.

### Marrakech Morrocco

Osava, M. 1998. Teenage Pregnancy High among Poor Brazilians. Pop line. 20.

Toide, V. O., Oronsaye, F. and Okonofua, F. E. 2001. The Nigerian Adolescent Seek. Abortion Raties' than Contraception: Evidence from focus group Discussion. International Family Planning Perspectives. 27.2: 77-81.

60

Merill, R. M., Fugal R. M., Novilla, L.B. and Rapheal, M. C. 2005. Cancer Risk Associated with Early and Late Maternal Age at First Birth. *Gynecol Oncol Mar.* 96.3: 583-593.

Mirowsky, J. and Ross, E. C. 2002. Depression, Parenthood, and Age at First Birth. Social Science and Medicine. 54.8: 1281-1298.

Mischell, D. R. 2007. Family Planning: Contraception, Sterilization and Pregnancy Termination. *Comprehensive Gynecology* (5th ed.)

Moore, K. A., Miller, B. C., Glei, D. et al. 1995. Adolescent Sex, Contraception and Child Bearing: A review of recent research. Washington DC: Child Trends.

National Population Commission (NPC), Federal Republic of Nigeria and ORC Macro, Nigeria Demographic and Health Survey 2003, Calverton, MD, USA: NPC and ORC Macro, 2004.

National population Commission and ICF Macro (2009). Needs of Married Adolescent Girls in Nsuka, Nigeria. J Sociology Soc Anth. 3.1:1-6.

Ngalinda, I. 1998. Age at first Birth, Fertility and Contraception in Tanzania. PhD Thesis. Dept.of Demography, Humboldt University of Berlin. Nigeria Demographic and health survey, 2008. ICF Macro, Calverton, Maryland USA.

Norville, C., Gomez, R. and Brown, R. L. 2003. Some Causes of Fertility Rates Movements.University of Waterloo, Institute of Insurance and Pension Research.

Olalekan, A. Uthman. 2008. Geographical Variations and Contextual Effects on Age of Initiation of Sexual Intercourse among Women in Nigeria: a multilevel and spatial analysis. International Journal of Health Geographics.7:27

Olukorede, W. E. and Ajadi, A. O. 2009. Causes and Consequeces of Induced Abortion among University undergraduates in Nigeria. Paper, 26<sup>th</sup> International Population Conference of the International Union for the Scientific Study of Population.

### Marrakech, Morrocco.

Osava, M. 1998. Teenage Pregnancy High among Poor Brazilians. Pop line. 20.

Toide, V. O., Oronsaye, F. and Okonofua, F. E. 2001. The Nigerian Adolescent Seek Abortion Rather than Contraception: Evidence from focus group Discussion. *International Family Planning Perspectives*. 27.2: 77-81.

60

Merill, R. M., Fugal R. M., Novilla, L.B. and Rapheal, M. C. 2005. Cancer Risk Associated with Early and Late Maternal Age at First Birth. *Gynecol Oncol Mar.* 96.3: 583-593.

Mirowsky, J. and Ross, E. C. 2002. Depression, Parenthood, and Age at First Birth. Social Science and Medicine. 54.8: 1281-1298.

Mischell, D. R. 2007. Family Planning: Contraception, Sterilization and Pregnancy Termination. *Comprehensive Gynecology* (5th ed.)

Moore, K. A., Miller, B. C., Glei, D. et al. 1995. Adolescent Sex, Contraception and Child Bearing: A review of recent research. Washington DC: Child Trends.

National Population Commission (NPC), Federal Republic of Nigeria and ORC Macro, Nigeria Demographic and Health Survey 2003, Calverton, MD, USA: NPC and ORC Macro, 2004.

National population Commission and ICF Macro (2009). Needs of Married Adolescent Girls in Nsuka, Nigeria. J Sociology Soc Anth. 3.1:1-6.

Ngalinda, I. 1998. Age at first Birth, Fertility and Contraception in Tanzania. PhD Thesis. Dept.of Demography, Humboldt University of Berlin. Nigeria Demographic and health survey, 2008. ICF Macro, Calverton, Maryland USA.

Norville, C., Gomez, R. and Brown, R. L. 2003. Some Causes of Fertility Rates Movements.University of Waterloo, Institute of Insurance and Pension Research.

Olalekan, A. Uthman. 2008. Geographical Variations and Contextual Effects on Age of Initiation of Sexual Intercourse among Women in Nigeria: a multilevel and spatial analysis. International Journal of Health Geographics.7:27

Olukorede, W. E. and Ajadi, A. O. 2009. Causes and Consequeces of Induced Abortion among University undergraduates in Nigeria. Paper, 26<sup>th</sup> International Population Conference of the International Union for the Scientific Study of Population,

### Marrakech, Morrocco.

Osava, M. 1998. Teenage Pregnancy High among Poor Brazilians. Pop line. 20.

Toide, V. O., Oronsaye, F. and Okonofua, F. E. 2001. The Nigerian Adolescent Seek Abortion Rather than Contraception: Evidence from focus group Discussion. *International Family Planning Perspectives*. 27.2: 77-81.

60

Oyefara, J. L. 2012. Age at First Birth and Fertility Differentials among Women in Osun State, Nigeria. *European Scientific Journal.* 8:16.

Oyefara, J. L. 2012. Maternal Age at First Birth and Childhood Mortality in Yoruba Society: The Case of Osun State, Nigeria. IISTE. 3:1.

Peter Ezeah. 2012: Marriage and Motherhood: A study of the Reproductive Health Status.
P-Makinwa-Adebusoye. 1995. The Impact of Female Employment on Women's Status and Fertility. East West Centre, Honolulu, Hawaii, USA, Dec. 18-20. *Population research and policy review*. 22.3: 251-266.

Rahayu, R., Utomo, I. And Mc Donald, P. 2009. Contraceptive Use Pattern among Married Women in Indonesia. *International Conference on Family planning: Research and Best Practices*. November 15-18, Kampala, Uganda.

Rani, S. U. and Radheshyam, B. 2007. Inconsistencies in the Relationship between

Contraceptive Use and Fertility in Bangledesh. International Family Planning Perspectives. 33: 31-37.

Sanhueaza, H. 2007. Family Planning in Chile: A tale of the unexpected in Robbinson W.C and J.A Ross (eds). The Global Family Revolution: Three decades of population policies and programmes. *International centre for Research on women 4*.

Schultz, T. P. 2002. Why Government Should Invest more to Educate Girls. *World Science And Medicne*. 54.8:1281-1298.

Singh, S., and Samara, R. 1996. Early Marriage among Women in Developing Countries. International Family Perspectives. 22:148-157 & 175.

Sommer, M. 2009. Ideologies of Sexuality, Menstruation and Risk: Girls experiences of puberty and Schooling in Northern Tanzania. *Cult Health Sex.* 11: 383-398. UNICEF. 2001. Early Marriage: Child Spouses. *Innocenti Digest.* 

UNICEF. 2004. Unicef Global Databases: Our Fertility and Contraceptive use. New York: United Nations. University of waterloo, Institute of Insurance and Pension Research.

Westoff, C. F. 1992 Age at Marriage, Age at First Birth, and Fertility in Africa. World bank Technical paper. 169

World population data sheet. A. Retrieved January 17, 2013. Washington: Population reference Bureau.: http://www.prb.org/publications/Datasheets/2009/2009wpds.aspx.

61

World Population Prospects, 2002, Department of Economic and Social Affairs, Population Division, United Nations,

- Yadav, S. S. and Badari, V. S. 1997. Age at Effective Marriage and Fertility: An analysis of data for North kanara. The Journal of Family wellare, 43-3: 61-66.
- Zabin, L. S and Kiragu, K. 1992. Health Consequences of Adolescent Sexuality and Childbearing in sub-saharan Africa. Background Paper commissioned for the working group on the social Dynamics-Adolescent fertility, Washington, D.C. Committee on Population, National Research Council.



#### AFRICAN DIGITAL HEALTH REPOSITORY PROJECT

10

World Population Prospects. 2002. Department of Economic and Social Affairs, :Population Division. United Nations.

Yadav, S. S. and Badari, V. S. 1997. Age at Effective Marriage and Fertility: An analysis of data for North kanara. *The Journal of Family welfare*. 43.3: 61-66.

 Zabin, L. S and Kiragu, K. 1992. Health Consequences of Adolescent Sexuality and Childbearing in sub-saharan Africa. Background Paper commissioned for the working group on the social Dynamics Adolescent fertility, Washington, D.C. Commitee on Population, National Research Council.



### 62